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LING Siu Man, Simon

Chairman and Managing Director

BV rprpesmme

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (the “Year”).

Business Review and Prospects

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$2,421 million, EBITDA of HK$142
million and profit attributable to shareholders of HK$6 million for the
year ended 31 March 2008, compared with HK$2,599 million, HK$140
million and HK$24 million respectively for the previous year.

The sale for high profit margin products like ATSC set top boxes,
digital satellite receivers and digital cable set top boxes increased
driven by the global switch from analogue to digital television services.
However, overall sale for the Year as compared with the previous year
was down as the result of the Group phrasing out some of the low
profit margin products including DVD standalone players.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EHEEE

The operating environment was difficult during the Year. Appreciation
of the Renminbi, increase in raw materials prices, crude oil price and
minimum wages in Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and new labour law taking effect in the PRC posed serious
pressure on the manufacturing industry including the Group which
reported lower profit attributable to shareholders for the Year.

During the Year, the management implemented a number of cost
cutting and system improvement measures to maintain operating
expenses of its manufacturing plants in the PRC at the same level as
the previous year or reduce it. The Group streamlined its production
process and increased investment in production automation to reduce
heavy reliance on labour. In addition, it passed on to customers
increase in material and other costs to preserve margin.

In the early part of the Year, the management put strenuous efforts
in identifying and exploring investment opportunities. However, those
investments finally could not be pursued and the Group incurred
expenses of HK$21.3 million in carrying out due diligence investigation
on them. Together with the write off of approximately HK$13.3 million
on an investment in DK Digital AG and loss on equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$6.4 million,
administrative expenses were comparable to that of last year.

As stated earlier, the Group signed an agreement with an independent
third party in May 2007 regarding the possible investment by the
Group in business of development, distribution and retail of consumer
electronics in the United States, Europe and Asia. The management
terminated the agreement as the conditions stated therein had not
been satisfied or waived.

In November 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with an
independent party to dispose of its entire interest in the issued share
capital of wholly-owned subsidiary Tonic Appliances Limited. The total
consideration for the disposal was approximately HK$5.6 million. The
disposal was completed in December 2007 and brought a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$1.9 million to the Group.

In January 2008, the Group signed an investment framework agreement
with several independent third parties wherein it proposed to subscribe
for 60% of the enlarged share capital of Able Top Holdings Limited
which will ultimately hold approximately 65% equity interest in a joint
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venture company in the PRC in the business of providing technical
support and consultancy services to multi-media content producers.
The management terminated the investment framework agreement in
March 2008 as a result of unsatisfactory due diligence findings.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 16 June 2008, Tonic
Electronics Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the family members
of Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, Chairman and controlling shareholder
of the Company, pursuant to which, the Group conditionally agreed
to dispose of and the purchasers conditionally agreed to acquire a
property currently occupied by Mr. Ling for residential purpose at a
consideration of HK$34 million. The transaction for the disposal of
the property is subject to the approval of independent shareholders
(shareholders other than Mr. Ling and his associates) of the Company.
The Group will record a gain on disposal of approximately HK$29
million when the transaction is completed.

In the coming year, the Group expects raw material prices, labour cost
and other production costs to continue to rise. The Renminbi is likely
to keep appreciating. The Group expects those cost cutting and system
improvement measures currently being implemented to effectively
cap its factory overheads and operating expenses in the foreseeable
future. The strong demand for set top boxes will persist for several
years given that the transition from analogue to digital broadcasting
has just begun worldwide. Benefiting from the robust demand for
related products, the Group achieved double digit growth in turnover
in the first quarter of financial year 2008/09 as compared with the
last corresponding period. The Group is confident of maintaining the
same level of turnover growth for the full coming year.

To achieve its goal, the Group will strengthen research and development
for its set top box business and raise relevant production capacities
to meet anticipated rise in demands. In addition to set top boxes,
the Group has put resources into developing new products like blu-
ray disc players with formal production scheduled to commence by
the end of 2008.

The Group will also continue to diversify business by exploring

investment opportunities with potential in bringing strong returns to
the Group in the long run.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EHEEE

New Shares Subscription

In November 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with an independent investor CorporActive Fund Limited involving
105 million new shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.218
per share. Such new shares were issued under the general mandate
granted to the directors of the Company at an annual general meeting
of the Company held on 25 September 2007. The subscription was
completed in the same month. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$22.8 million was applied as capital expenditure to support
manufacture of existing and new products, expenditure in relation
to locating suitable new business investment opportunities and as
general working capital of the Group.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend payment of a final cash dividend
(vear ended 31 March 2007: HK$1 cent per ordinary share).

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 16
September 2008 to 18 September 2008, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for attending
and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 18 September 2008, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 12 September 2008.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all employees for their
continuous contribution and hard work. My thanks also go to our
customers and business partners for their continuous support to the
Group and my fellow Board members for their support and advice
during the year.

On behalf of the Board
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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Executive Directors

Mr. LING Siu Man, Simon, aged 58, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, Mr. Ling founded the business of the Group
in 1976 and has over 31 years experience in the electronics industry.
Mr. Ling is responsible for the strategic planning, corporate policy,
and marketing aspects of the Group.

Mr. WONG Ki Cheung, aged 58, joined the Group in 1976 and is
responsible for the Group’s overall management, purchasing and
materials control functions. He has over 28 years experience in the
electronics component industry.

Ms. LI Fung Ching, Catherine, aged 54, joined the Group in 1976
and is responsible for the treasury function of the Group. She has
over 28 years experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. AU Wai Man, aged 63, is the Group’s engineering consultant. He
is responsible for the research and development of the Group’s new
products. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, he has over 27 years
experience in electronics product engineering.

Mr. LAM Kwai Wah, aged 43, joined the Group in 1998 and is mainly
responsible for the Group’s marketing activities in Europe. He has over
22 years experience in marketing of electronics products and home
appliances. Mr. Lam obtained a higher certificate in marketing and
sales management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEM
EEREBREEAESRE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. PANG Hon Chung, aged 57, holds a master’s degree in business
administration, and is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Pang has extensive experience in business management and is a
director and the general manager of Lotus International Limited.

Mr. CHENG Tsang Wai, aged 52, has over 30 years experience in the
garment industry and is a director and major shareholder of Vicka
Limited which is a sweater manufacturing company.

Dr. CHUNG Hing Wah, Paul, aged 62, has over 37 years’ experiences
with public service in administration, operation, discipline, nursing
and management. He also has over 17 years’ experiences in training
and development and management consultancy with various local and
PRC Mainland providers and corporations. Apart from being appointed
as the consultant or principal consultant of many major local and PRC
training providers, he is also the director and principal consultant of
PC Consultancy Ltd. Dr. Chung holds degrees of MBA and DBA.

Senior Management

Mr. YEUNG Hon Po, aged 60, is the production director of Dongguan
Xin Lian Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Yeung is responsible for
the management and manufacturing operations of the Company in
Dongguan Shi Pai factory. He has over 40 years experience in the
production of electronic products and he joined the Group in 1978.

Mr. KWOK Yiu Wa, aged 43, is the production manager of Tonic
Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible for the management
and manufacturing operations of the Company in Dongguan Tang Xia
factory. He is also responsible for the automation department in the
factory. Mr. Kwok has over 20 years of manufacturing experience of
electronic products and he joined the Group in 1988.

Ms. TAM Wing Ki, Samantha, aged 32, joined the Group in 1998
and is responsible for the management and marketing of the
home appliances division. She received her Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Michigan (Ann Arbor)
and Master of Science degree in Engineering Business Management
from the University of Warwick.
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Business Development

Digital broadcasting which is fast replacing the obsolete anologue
mode around the world has brought ample business opportunities to
the Group. Since early 2007, the Group has been investing resources
in research and development of ATSC set top boxes and its effort
has been successful. The demand for ATSC set top boxes has been
monumental in the North America market with the United States
government offering a coupon programme to Sponsor consumers
who wish to purchase such products. The demand for basic digital
cable set top boxes in the Chinese market has also been strong and,
as sales of the products kept climbing in the market, pressure from
appreciation of the Renminbi eased on the Group. There are clear
market trends that indicate demand for digital cable set top boxes
will remain strong worldwide in the next few years. To capture the
demand, the Group has equipped its production base with reliable
production facilities and skilled labour. In addition to set top boxes,
the Group has been developing blu-ray disc products, which it believes
will become another mainstream like DVD products. By seizing first
mover advantage, the Group expects to secure a marked share of
the blu-ray disc product market.

Liquidity Resources

On 23 March 2006, the Group signed a 3-year term loan facility
agreement for HK$150 million with a syndicate of 7 international and
local banks. The loan is on HIBOR basis and repayable by installment
starting 18 months after the date of the loan agreement. This syndicated
loan had been used to fully repay the syndicated loan obtained on
3 December 2003, with the balance of approximately HK$27 million
for funding the Group’s working capital requirements. Under the
terms of the loan agreement, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, Chairman of
the Group, is required to maintain at least 40% shareholding of the
Company, be the single largest shareholder and be actively involved
in the management and business of the Group, otherwise it will
constitute as default.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AN
ERER W& DT

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had total borrowings of approximately
HK$518 million, of which HK$503 million was bank borrowings and
HK$15 million was for obligations under finance leases. The Group’s
borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bear
interest mainly on HIBOR basis. Bank balances and cash on hand,
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, amounted to HK$31
million. Gearing ratio was 87% calculated based on net borrowings
over shareholder funds.

The Group is not exposed to material currency fluctuation risks, as
most of its receivables are in US dollars and payable in Hong Kong
and US dollars. The Group purchases forward contracts with banks
to hedge against confirmed US dollar receipts. In addition, the Group
has Renminbi receipts from sales in the Chinese market to off set
the rising Renminbi expenses of its manufacturing plants in the PRC.
Appreciation of the Renminbi has no material impact on the Group
in the short run. Except for a few customers to whom the Group
transacts business on letter of credit, the Group offers credit on an
open account basis or on factoring basis with all other customers.

Taxation

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China enacted the Law on Enterprise Income Tax by Order
No.63 of the President of the PRC, which will unify the tax rate at 25%
for both domestic enterprises and foreign enterprises in the country.
Furthermore, some expenses like professional expenses on aborted
projects, fair value losses on equity investment at fair value through
profit or loss and impairment of an available-for-sale investment,
were non-deductible due to its capital nature. Correspondingly, the
Group’s taxation expenses increased during the Year.

Litigation

In April 2007, Toshiba alleged the Group of infringing its DVD technology
patents and filed claims against some of the members of the Group.
In response, the Group secured the DVD technology patents license
with the DVD 6C Patent Licensing Group (“6C Group”). With the related
license agreement signed on 25 July 2007, the Group has obtained the
required license to use patented technologies of Toshiba, Mitsubishi,
Hitachi, JVC, Panasonic, Samsung, Sanyo, Warner Brothers and Sharp
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to manufacture DVD player products. By reason that it is a member
of the 6C Group, Toshiba subsequently dropped all its claims against
members of the Group.

In September 2006, Applica Consumer Products, Inc. and Applica
Asia Limited, two former customers of Tonic Appliances Limited, the
subsidiary of the Company, jointly instituted legal proceedings against
Tonic Appliances Limited seeking damages in the sum of HK$3,652,767
together with interest for breach of agreement for sale of goods. The
Company disposed of its entire interest in the issued share capital of
Tonic Appliances Limited in November 2007. Following the completion
of the disposal, the claim against the Group ceased.

In October 2006, Tonic Digital Products Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, instituted legal proceedings against
former customer Senlan Limited for goods sold and delivered in the
sum of US$456,135 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,557,853)
together with interest. The proceeding is now in a pre-trial stage of
discovery of documents of both parties and the date of trial has not
been confirmed.

Employees Relations

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had 8,200 employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Total salaries and wages amounted to approximately
HK$169 million for the year under review. Salaries and wages are
normally reviewed annually on the basis of staff performance appraisals
and market conditions. The Group provides year-end double pay,
discretionary bonuses, provident fund, medical insurance and job
training to its employees. Employee welfare is decided with reference
to prevailing labour laws in Hong Kong and the PRC.

AND ANALYSIS

MAS TR AFERIR BUEDVDIE M E & ©

HRERCREZKERR  REBRHOE
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Products, Inc. X Applica Asia LimitedstiZ & $4&
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AIRFIEEFAD B REE S 652,767
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ZEEBRAER - HETKE  MAEEIRDY
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b & $H456,1353 7T (AHE A 4075 53,557,853 7T )
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PORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries engage in the design, manufacture and trading of
consumer electronic products and components and home appliance
products. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 40 to 151.

No interim dividend was paid to shareholders during the year (2007:
Nil). The board of directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of a final cash dividend (2007: HK1 cent per share).

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 36(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution represent the share premium account, contributed
surplus and retained profits. At 31 March 2008, the Company’s
reserves available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie
amounted to HK$164,425,000, including the share premium account,
in the amount of HK$71,388,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 67% of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 24% of the total
revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their associates
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)), nor any
shareholders which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 152. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

o] £ 53k ik 48
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements during the year in the Company’s share capital
and the share options are respectively set out in notes 34 and 35 to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wong Ki Cheung
Li Fung Ching, Catherine
Au Wai Man
Lam Kwai Wah
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1 December 2007)
Lee Ka Yue, Peter (resigned on 3 August 2007)

Non-executive directors:

Pang Hon Chung*

Cheng Tsang Wai*

Chung Hing Wah, Paul*

Wong Wai Kwong, David (resigned on 3 August 2007)

* Independent non-executive directors
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Ki Cheung, Mr. Au Wai Man and Mr. Pang Hon Chung will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The terms of office of the non-executive directors are the periods
from their dates of appointment to their retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Pang Hon Chung, Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai and Dr. Chung Hing
Wah, Paul, and still considers them to be independent as at the date
of this report.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Group are set out on pages
8 to 9 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All the executive directors, other than Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, have entered
into service contracts with the Company for terms of three years
commencing from 1 October 2006. Mr. Lam Kwai Wah has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of thirty months
commencing from 1 January 2007.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to the directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2008, the interests of the directors in the share capital
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SF0”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

EFEME

EXZHNSBRBRNBRRARE EHE - H B
SAHARRELEG2EEE2RT EF -
AEAGEE 2 KRB R EEER

EFHA 26 RAERR G ER

B is

RZZBZENF=ZA=1T—8  EERARAR
HiRgOrE (EE RES B ED([E5 &8
BRI ) FEXVER) 2 BAF - B ARBERAR
AIRIBE S LR GG FI52E R EFE 2B
fit - HRBE LM BTAZEFETESRHNT
ETA(MRETRIDAMNEARBRREEHE
RHAARAR([BRAA]) 2T

a) AAFEERZIFE

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary issued share

Nature of interest shares held capital

Fits EXQT 28T

Name of director EEHE iy EiEREE [ EN=L 7 4

Ling Siu Man, Simon & > Corporate (note) 668,492,476 63.19

nal (HE)

Li Fung Ching, Catherine ESJCN=] Personal 2,142,000 0.20
T&A

Wong Ki Cheung H5HE Personal 1,749,000 0.17
A

Cheng Tsang Wai o {2 Personal 1,626,000 0.15
T&A

674,009,476 63.71

Note:  These shares were held by Success Forever Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ling Siu

Man, Simon.

Hiat - ZERMNBE—BREBEZHSTM
FX L2 A RSuccess Forever Limited¥
B MARMEIHEBEITRAHE D
NEEBEEHESR °
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

b) Long positions in share options of the
Company

Name of director EEkg
Ling Siu Man, Simon DX
Wong Ki Cheung =HE
Li Fung Ching, Catherine FEA
Au Wai Man BER
Lam Kwai Wah MRAEEE

c) Associated corporation
At 31 March 2008, Ling Siu Man, Simon personally held
3,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each of Tonic
Electronics Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and in
the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EEMB 2N RABFK D ER
) 3529 -—4¢ )]

b) FaTEIREZEFE

Number of options directly
beneficially owned

EEESAANERENE

15,000,000
2,715,000
2,715,000
2,715,000
1,650,000

24,795,000
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which any director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or any time during the year.

Share Option Scheme

Concerning the share options granted to the directors and employees
as detailed below, the directors do not consider it appropriate to
disclose a theoretical value of the options granted because in the
absence of a readily available market value of the share options on
the shares of the Company, the directors were unable to arrive at an
assessment of the value of these share options.

EFREXSHP R
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TERBPEAQAGERESEFERNOET -
options during the year:

Number of
outstanding
share options
lapsed Date of grant of Exercise period Exercise price
At 1 April 2007 during the year At 31 March 2008 share options of share options of share options*
EREYH
R-FEtE B R AT R-FENE R Rl Rk
mA-H BRENE =R=+-H RHaH fTE8 i@
HK$ per share
SREE
Directors
B2
Ling Siu Man, Simon 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
EIX —ZETE to 09-04-10
mA+H —TETEF
mA+HZ
—T-%F
MANE
Wong Ki Cheung 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
EHE —TETEF to 09-04-10
mA+H —ZETEF
mA+HZ
—T-%F
mANE
Li Fung Ching, Catherine 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
2EE —TETEF to 09-04-10
mA+H —ZETEF
mA+HZ
—ZT-%F
mANE
Au Wai Man 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
B —TETEF to 09-04-10
mA+H —TTTEF
mA+HZ
—T-%F
MANE
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lapsed
At 1 April 2007 during the year At 31 March 2008
FERERRH
R-BEtE i K AT RZFENE
mA-8 BRENE ZA=+-H
Lam Kwai Wah 1,650,000 - 1,650,000
Wi
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary 2,715,000 (2,715,000) -
BRE"
Lee Ka Yue, Peter 2,715,000 (2,715,000) -
ERA™
30,225,000 (5,430,000) 24,795,000
Other employees
HibES
In aggregate 34,950,000 (2,925,000 32,025,000
At
65,175,000 (8,355,000 56,820,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in

Number of
outstanding
share options

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.
** resigned on 1 December 2007
b resigned on 3 August 2007

Date of grant of
share options

Bk
RHiEH

07-04-00
ZTETF

MALH

07-04-00
337

MmALH

07-04-00
e i

MmALH

07-04-00
ZTETF

MmALA

Exercise period
of share options

Bk
(L

10-04-00
10 09-04-10
—ITRR
MATRE
%%
mANA

10-04-00
to 09-04-10
~23%%

—<=

MATARE
“E-TF

mANA

10-04-00
t0 09-04-10
= i
mA+EZ
—T-%F

mANA

10-04-00
to 09-04-10
—“Z2%F
mA+EZE
—2-%F

mANA

Exercise price
of share options*

R
i@

HKS per share
GREE

0.467

0.467

0.467

0.467

BREZTEESMEEHRRBETAR X
RAFI P AR IR BB (F R -
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pA
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T+FNAZABT
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2008, the following parties having the interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity
and nature
Name of interest
&E S RESEE
Success Forever Limited (note 1) Directly beneficially owned
(HteE1) EEEEHSR
CorporActive Fund Limited (note 2) Directly beneficially owned
(Hiex2) BEEEEHRA
Notes:
1) The entire issued share capital of Success Forever Limited is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, as disclosed in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above.
2) CorporActive Fund Limited, an investment fund managed by Somerley

Limited.

fib N 12 B 43 R 486

RZFEENF=ZA=+—0  BREAXRFIEE
HFRHEGHEI6EMITFE 2 RS LM
Stk MEBARRRIE BITRAS%HIA LR
AT -

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share

shares held capital
BEATEBIT

FifsdiERe e BRAEESEL
668,492,476 63.19
105,000,000 9.93

Wik

1) B EX[ESHE 2R RABR G #ER R
£ |—EnATHE 5 © Success Forever Limited2 &
BETRAREDNEEELEHES -

2) CorporActive Fund Limited BFT & F AR A BE
BoREES -
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions of the Company are set out in
note 43 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Compliance with the Continuing Disclosure
Requirements under Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements under
Rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the directors of the
Company reported the details of the following loan agreement which
included conditions relating to the specific performance obligations
of the controlling shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group signed a term loan
facility agreement for a syndicated loan of HK$150 million for a period
of three years. Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman of the
Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon is required to be the single largest
shareholder, be actively involved in the management and business of
the Group, and be maintained at least 40% of the beneficial interests
in shareholdings in the Company.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report, being the latest practical date prior to the date of this
report.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the Group are
set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Hong Kong
18 July 2008
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ORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT
EERELRE

Compliance with Code on Corporate
Governance

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers that
good corporate governance of the Company is central to safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders of the Group and enhancing the
performance of the Group. The Board is committed to ensure a
high standard of corporate governance. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles (the “Principles”),
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions and
complied with the CG Code during the financial year ended 31 March
2008, with a deviation from the Code Provisions (i) A.2.1 in respect of
separate roles of Chairman and chief executive officer, and (ii) A.4.2
in respect of retirement of directors of the Company (“Director”) by
rotation at least once every three years.

Set out below are the status and details of compliance by the Company
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2008.

The Board

Board composition

The Board has in its composition a balanced of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the issuer. The
Board has a balanced mix Directors, i.e. 5 executive Directors, and 3
independent non-executive Directors. The list of all Directors is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 and the biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 8 to 9 of this report, which demonstrates
a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.
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The Board (continveq)

Board composition (continued)

Save as disclosed hereon, to the best of knowledge of the Directors,
the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Board meetings

Board meetings were held at least 4 times during the year roughly
on a quarterly basis. Dates for regular Board meetings are scheduled
in advance to provide sufficient time for the Directors to prepare
for. Special Board meetings will be held when necessary. Notice of
meeting will be given at least 14 days before the meeting. Directors
are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda and Board
papers will be served at least 3 days before the meeting. Details
of the attendance of the Board meetings held for the year ended
31 March 2008 and up to the date of the publication of this report
were as follows:

EEEw

EEEHEER @

BAFREREEIN  BEEMN EFLEK
BrMYEYS ¥ REXEMEKRH
RARE R o

RBE_ZZN\F=ZRA=+—RBILHFE EF
E-HENREMRNEBZERI =UBILIF
MITEEMRTE -

ARFCEERUBIIFNTESRELTR
ARZXBEBEB UM FEBRE - XAF
R MREMBRAFAH 2 BIMAES - &
BUIFMITESHEB MM -

ESEES
EXeRNFARIBITORER  WBFET
—R-EFEPEZRTEHRELR &
ExfMERERELAFREIEER - BHEFS
EREVERRIT HEARETRERENET
TR THREL -HEeERZRAERNE
B EHAEENER YRERERETE
BAZREAHEERN - FRABRE_ZTTN\F
ZA=t-HLEFERBEARETEERS
LERITHNEFERZNDFEBERNT

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited S HhE%£EREMR A 5



T
—

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERELRE

The Board (continvea)

Board meetings (continued) EFEER@
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Name of Director EElS HE EHHE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman EONEE (FEREFLLE)
and Managing Director) 4/4
Mr. Wong Ki Cheung sEHE A 3/4
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FR AT 4/4
Mr. Au Wai Man BEREE 4/4
Mr. Lam Kwai Wah MEEZE S A 4/4
Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (Chief Executive Officer) — BEBIsR %L (7THE4E%) 3/4
(resigned on 1 December 2007) (RZEZLF+ A —HEHT)
Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter (resigned on 3 August 2007) Z&&tE (R_EZ+FN\A=ZHEMT) 1/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BN TESE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung ik A 3/4
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai g e 2/4
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEEEHT 4/4
Non-Executive Director FEHITEE
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David FENEE
(resigned on 3 August 2007) (R=—ZZ+FN\AZHET) 0/4

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee have been recorded in sufficient details
the matters considered in the meetings. All the minutes are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice given by any Director.

Directors can access to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are properly followed.

In addition, all Directors are regularly updated on corporate governance
and regulatory matters. There is a guideline for Directors to obtain
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also arranged
appropriate director and officer liability insurance cover in respect
of legal action against its Directors.
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The Board (continveq)

Chairman and chief executive officer

Chairman is responsible to manage the affairs of the Board and
the chief executive officer is responsible to manage the day-to-day
operation of the Company’s business.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be preformed
by the same individual.

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon is the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
management, objectives setting and corporate development as well as
the management of the Board’s affairs. The Board considers that this
structure is more effective and efficient in running the business. The
Board believes that Mr. Ling’s appointment to the posts of Chairman
and chief executive officer is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Group.

Nomination, appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors

The Group has a formal, considerate and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Director to the Board. The Group has
adopted a nomination procedures and the Board, based on the criteria
established, evaluate and select candidates for the directorships.
The Board reviews the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations regarding any proposed changes. The
Directors identifies suitable individual qualified to become Board
members and makes recommendation on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors if necessary, in
particular, candidates who can add value to the management through
their contribution in the relevant strategic business areas and whose
appointments will result on the constitution of strong and diverse
Board. The meeting of the Board regarding the nomination of Directors
shall be held at least once a year or when necessary. In case any
Director resigns from the Board, reasons for the resignation will be
disclosed in the announcement.
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The Board (continvea)

Nomination, appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors (continued)

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The existing
non-executive Directors of the Company, except for Mr. Pang Hon
Chung being independent non-executive Director of the Company,
have a specific term of appointment. All non-executive Directors are
subject to the requirement to retire by rotation at annual general
meetings under the Company’s Articles of Association accomplishing
the same objective as a specific term of appointment.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment. Every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Company’s Articles of Association, on the other hand, is inconsistent
with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, which provides that
one-third of the Directors for the time being (save for the Chairman
or managing director or joint managing director), or if their number
is not three nor a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at annual general meetings. The Board considers that Mr.
Ling Siu Man, Simon, Chairman of the Board, should not be subject
to retirement to ensure continuity of leadership and stability for
growth of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

In addition, the Board is charged with promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible
and effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith
in the best interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of
their collective and individual responsibilities to all shareholders of
the Group for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated.
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The Board (continveq)

Responsibilities of directors (continued)

Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group.
non-executive Directors have the same duties of care and skill and
fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

The functions of non-executive Directors have included the functions
as specified in the Code Provision A.5.2(a) to (d) of the CG Code.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated functions that are necessary and incident
to carry out the decision of the Board or to facilitate the day-to-day
operation of the Group in ordinary course of business to the senior
management and divisional heads of different units.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to senior management include execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

Supply of and access to information

Directors will be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in
all other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent
in full to all Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before
the intended date of a Board meeting.

EEEw

EENST @)
EEEANTISHIEAESEMER LRSS
UWREEMIES 2B IHRERMAZE -

FRTEFTRPTETARASEE  ARET
B
FRITEFAREE

SRR R E G 7RI B
SCEEA.5.2(a) 2 (o) 16 AT 5 AR D BRBE -
EFENRE

EERCRTRAEEERTRBMAHHAE
EMEREBOESD  UEBTEERORT R
RR A S B — R 5B A2 o AT 5 B HE T B

BEE -

EEgCHRESREREREN TR

EHOE NITE SRR RE R
B BRIANBEZRARERRF - UR
BAARBEE B - RAIRAED -
BERRHNER

ARrfehRRASESR{EEEN ik
HEMMEANER  BARSESFHELAB
RELEITARREENBIELEME

WEFEZEMERME  MEBRATZMA
BEMBERAT  MEESEHEARIRKERE
EFEZSSRHRERGZBH =X EX=2
SEBEMIEHNEMETEXN -

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited S HhE%£EREMR A 5



T
—

EERELRE

The Board (continvea)

Supply of and access to information (continued)
Management is regularly reminded by the company secretary that
they have an obligation to supply the Board and its committees with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable them to make
informed decisions. The information supplied must be complete and
reliable. The Board and each Director have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for making further
enquires where necessary.

Training for directors

Every newly appointed Director of the Group will receive an information
package from the company secretary on his appointment. The package
will include guidelines and information such as:

(@)  Guidelines on Directors’ Duties;

(b)  Brief notes and guidelines on Code on Corporate Governance
Practices;

(c)  The Group’s code of conduct regarding the securities transactions
by the Directors;

(d) Brief notes and guidelines on Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company;

(e)  The Company’s Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Company;

(f) A copy of the Corporate Governance Report; and
(@) A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Handbook.

The senior management and the company secretary will subsequently
conduct such briefing as is necessary to ensure that the Director
has a proper understanding of the operations and business of the
Group, and the Director is aware of his obligation under statue and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and
other regulatory requirements.
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The Board (continveq)

Directors’ securities transactions

The Group has adopted its code of conduct for securities transactions
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, the
Company has confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2008.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company enters into directors’ service agreements with each of
the executive Directors. Such agreements set out the relevant terms for
remuneration and other benefits. The remuneration of the Directors was
determined with reference to the job responsibilities of the Directors,
market conditions and the performance of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
independent non-executive Directors. This committee is authorised
by the Board and makes recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management. Details of the attendance of the meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Members of the Remuneration

FWESENE

Committee

Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Pang Hon Chung TEREA
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZRAERZET

There is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy and
procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management. The Group will gather and summarise information
relating to remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year and
consider the above information and make recommendation to the
Board and have access to professional advice if necessary.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospect in
the annual and interim reports. Other price-sensitive information
and financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
statutory requirements will be timely disclosed and reported.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts which give a true and
fair view for the year ended 31 March 2008.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” on page 38 to 39.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders* investment
and the Group’s assets.

The management is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and the Board is responsible for reviewing its effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control and its subsidiaries at least
annually. The function of reviewing its effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control is delegated to Audit Committee by the
Board. The system will cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal control
of the Group. The internal audit department carries out annual risk
assessment on each audit area and derives an annual audit plan
according to their risk rankings. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee receives summary
reports from internal audit department. Copy of the minutes of Audit
Committee meeting will also be sent to the Board for information.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Pang Hon Chung, chairman of the Audit Committee
has the appropriate professional qualification and experience in
financial matters as required by the Listing Rules. This committee is
authorised by the Board and responsible for reviewing the financial
reports, internal controls principals and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s auditors. Details of the attendance of
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2008 and up to the date of this report were as follows:

EXESENE

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Pang Hon Chung (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai BB LA
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEESLT
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David EHENEE

(resigned on 3 August 2007)

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors during the
year to discuss any areas of concern during the audits. The Audit
Committee reviewed the interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact
of the changes in accounting polices and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
Company’s external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2008 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

Audit services EZR
Non-statutory audit services relating EHEBRERS
to connected transaction ZIEETEEZRTE

Executive Committee

All of the members of the Executive Committee are executive Directors.
This committee is chaired by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon. The other
members are Mr. Wong Ki Cheung, Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine, Mr.
Au Wai Man, Mr. Lam Kwai Wah and Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (resigned
on 1 December 2007). This committee is authorised by the Board
and is responsible for monitoring the execution of strategic plans and
day-to-day operations of the business units and making decision on
matters relating to the management and operations.

Details of the attendance of the Executive Committee meetings held
during the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Members of the Executive Committee

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Ki Cheung

Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Mr. Au Wai Man

Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, Peter

Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (resigned on 1 December 2007)
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Securities Transaction by the Relevant
Employees

Under the Code Provision A.5.4 of the CG Code, the Board has
established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in the
Company’s securities. “Relevant employee” includes any employee
of the Group or a Director or employee of a subsidiary or holding
company of the issuer, because of such office or employment, is likely
to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Group and its securities. Having made specific enquiry
to all relevant employees, the Company confirms that all relevant
employees have complied with the written guidelines regarding
securities transactions for the year.

Corporate Communication

The Group should announce its annual results and interim results in
a timely manner before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meetings
on each separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.
In addition, procedures for demanding a poll at the annual general
meeting will be included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with this report.

The Group has also maintained a website of http://www.tonic.com.hk
which enables shareholders of the Company, investors and the general
public to access to the information of the Group on a timely basis.
Financial information and all corporate communications of the Group
are made available on the Group’s website and updated regularly.

AHARSEITESX S

REBCEERTUNEASMG EFSEUE
EHENERERREBRETARAESFR S
ZIEESTRIZHES - [BERESR IBRBAKEE
MEEHBFTAMBRBAIIZERAR ZEETL
’BE  FZBUZEMAERBAEERE
EHFARBZARNHREGFZRENSS - EH2
BEREBEBETHEENER  ARAA®IADE
BEHEERFANEETARIERR G ZE@E
3l e

AR

AREE RN L AR RIFTEBSRR AT IR A H F
EEERTHEE - LS EFERRBRBF
ARELEREEMNAZR  BREEEBENE
o ltdh BRRBRERBFASGURBERERE

RZEFENARERARETE TR 2B

7N £ [ JR R http://www.tonic.com.hkZ A8k
SARARE - HEERARATATIREES
REBER -AKBEZHBERRMELER
AMARAEBMBUERGE - TS TEEFEF -

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited S HhE%£EREMR A 5



' o

EERELRE

Voting By Poll at General Meetings

The Company informs the shareholders in its circular convening a
general meeting the procedures for voting by poll and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll to ensure compliance with the
requirements on the poll voting procedures. In accordance with article
80 of Articles of Association of the Company, at any general meeting
a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show
of hands, unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result
of the show of hands) demanded by:

i) the Chairman of the meeting; or

ii) at least five shareholders present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote; or

iii)  any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy
and representing in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of
the total voting rights of all members having the right to attend
and vote at the meeting; or

iv)  any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy
and holding shares conferring a right to attend and vote at
the meeting on which there have been paid up sums in the
aggregate equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all shares conferring that right.

Unless a poll is so demanded and not withdrawn, a declaration by
the Chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried,
or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an
entry to that effect in the Company’s book containing the minutes of
proceedings of meetings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence
of that fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes
recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

The Chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the
meeting ensure that an explanation is provided of:

i) the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders of the
Company before putting a resolution to the vote on a show of
hands; and

ii)  the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer
any questions from shareholders of the Company whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.

ORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Ernst & Young
18th Floor

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tonic Industries Holdings
Limited set out on pages 40 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Two International Finance Centre
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2008

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Professional expenses on aborted projects

Fair value (losses)/gains on equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

DIVIDEND
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
— Basic

— Diluted

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

Galm=R

HE-FENF=A=+—HILFE

NOTES
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2008 2007
—EEN\E —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBEEEF T
2,420,918 2,599,414
(2,232,387) (2,474,909)
188,531 124,505
5,619 14,332
(11,862) (8,462)
(84,471) (77,303)
(21,326) 5
(6,432) 8,964
(13,256) 5
(36,870) (30,351)
19,933 31,685
(14,248) (7,673)
5,685 24,012

- 9,529

HKO0.6 centi#1ll

HK2.5 centsi#& 1Ll

N/A

N/A




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2008

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Available-for-sale investments

Non-current portion of an other receivable

Non-current portion of loans receivable

Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Accounts and bills receivables
Factored accounts receivables
Current portion of loans receivable
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Prepaid land lease payments
Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payables

Accrued liabilities and other payables

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Bank advances on factored accounts
receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Tax payable
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—EENF=ZHA=+—H

NOTES
fteE

14
15
16
19
20
21

22
23
24
21

25
15

26
27

28

29
30
31

24
27

2008 2007
“BTN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFIT BT T
736,084 704,250
43,279 44,155
22,716 27,228
- 14,219

2,470 4,780

- 93

2,399 5,510
806,948 800,235
526,835 315,509
207,724 199,162
118,451 =
93 188
21,342 61,772
971 1,004
4,080 10,512

- 1,582

- 921

31,031 92,698
910,527 683,348
507,856 288,408
53,143 65,858
303,183 373,111
118,451 =
3,325 =
18,635 5,410
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #GR&E&EEBER

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE B F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 BEFTT BT T
Total current liabilities nBBEBRE 1,004,593 732,787
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAETFE (94,066) (49,439)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZBRABERE 712,882 750,796
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHEE
Interest-bearing bank and FERRITR
other borrowings HmEE 31 96,686 156,785
Net deferred tax liabilities BERIEAEFSE 33 54,446 52,641
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERT 151,132 209,426
Net assets BEFHE 561,750 541,370
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to equity EATIHELG A AEIL#ELS
holders of the Company
Issued capital B BT A 34 105,789 95,289
Reserves 1 36(a) 455,961 436,552
Proposed final dividend ¥R R HIAR B 12 - 9,529
Total equity AR 561,750 541,370

Ling Siu Man, Simon
B
Director

EBEF

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

Li Fung Ching, Catherine

RNBEEXEERAER2T

FRE

Director

EFE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2008

At 1 April 2006

Surplus on revaluation

Deferred tax debited to equity:
Surplus on revaluation
Change in tax rate

Exchange realignment

Total income and expense for
the year recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total income and expense
for the year

Final 2006 dividend paid

Proposed final 2007 dividend

At 31 March 2007

At 1 April 2007

Exchange realignment

Total income and expense

for the year

recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total income and
expense for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Final 2007 dividend paid

At 31 March 2008

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$455,961,000 *

R-ZEAEMA-A

Lt
i 2 B
5424
B22H
FEL

MERERED L
KERRAR
P scisE

AERRH

RERRAR

RxEs
ENZEEAERERE
BE-EELEXBRE

KoFFLEZA=1-A
K-2TLEMA-R
Eji8E
DL
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RuE
AEREH

AERRAR
P scis
L)
R BT
ENZZRLERIRE

N-EENFZA=1-A

GEEREHR

HE-FEN\F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATRERTAE

Share Asset  Exchange Proposed

Issued  premium revaluation fluctuation final

capital  account Contributed  reserve  reserve  Retained  dividend
BRI Bt surplus BE MEXK®  profits ik Total
Bx  RER SARER EfRG B RORH KHURE &t
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
i3 BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BETr BETn BETr BRI
95,289 59,098 280 91,613 (5,240) 257,497 9,529 508,066
14 - - - 24,925 - - - 24,925
33 - - - (3,120) - - - (3,120)
33 - - - (15.259) - - - (15253)
- - - - 12,269 - - 12,269
- - - 6,552 12,269 - - 18,821
- - - - - 24,012 - 24,012
- - - 6,552 12,269 24,012 - 42,833
- - - S - - (9,529) (9,529)
12 - - - - - (9,529) 9,529 -
95,289 59,098 280" 98,165 7,029 271,980 9529 541,310
95,289 59,098 280 98,165 7,029 271,980 9529 541,310
- - - - 1,434 - - 1,434
- - - - 1,434 - - 1,434
- - - - - 5,685 - 5,685
- - - - 1,434 5,685 - 7,119
34 10,500 12,390 - - - - - 22,890
34 - (100) - - - - - (100)
12 - - - - - - (9,529) (9,529)
105,789 71,388 280* 98,165 8,463 _ 277,665 - _ 561,750

(2007: HK$436,552,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.

HWEREREEREABEERBERANBE

455,961,0007C( =T T4+ B 1436,552,0007T )
RAREE -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items

of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Fair value losses/(gains), net:

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
— forward currency contracts, net
Depreciation
Provision against inventories
Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments
Amortisation of software development
costs and trademarks
Amortisation of deferred
development costs
Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in accounts and
bills receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payables
Decrease in accrued liabilities
and other payables
Increase in factored accounts
receivables

Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Interest element on finance

lease rental payments
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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2008 2007
—EBEN\E —EEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETIT BT T
19,933 31,685
36,870 30,351
(1,504) (1,680)
(153) (134)
3,968 (8,871)
(1,922) 3
6,432 (8,964)
3,325 (1,582)
73,333 70,463
4,201 1,830
967 1,004
355 348
11,280 7,396
13,256 1
170,341 121,846
(215,527) 36,938
(14,057) 75,088
39,357 (22,416)
196,962 (160,686)
(13,349) (13,789)
(118,451) 5
45,276 36,981
1,504 1,680
(35,518) (28,479)
(1,352) (1,872)
(52) 1,610
(672) (241)
9,186 9,679




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2008

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from listed investments

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an equity
investment at fair value through
profit or loss

Net inflow from disposal of
a subsidiary

Additions to intangible assets

Decrease in loans receivable

Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares, net

(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans

New bank loans

Bank advances on factored accounts
receivables

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Dividends paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdraft, unsecured
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2008 2007
—EENE BT F

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M aE BT BT T
9,186 9,679

5 153 134
38(i), (ii) (74,196) (62,965)
38(iii) 6,848 539
963 8,832

4,525 =

37

16 (7,123) (17,739)
188 188
(2,346) (4,759)
(70,988) (75,770)

34 22,790 =
(48,336) 33,284

83,003 135,257

118,451 =
(159,764) (89,994)
(11,168) (10,724)
(9,529) (9,529)

(4,553) 58,294
(66,355) (7,797)

92,698 99,971

389 524

26,732 92,698

28 31,031 92,698
31 (4,299) =
26,732 92,698
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BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2008

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities and other payables

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Ling Siu Man, Simon
B
Director

EF

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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2008 2007

“BTN\E —EBELEF

NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
et BETFIT BT T
18 270,085 251,547
19 - 13,256
270,085 264,803

28 138 137
30 9 9
129 128

270,214 264,931

34 105,789 95,289
36(b) 164,425 160,113
12 - 9,529
270,214 264,931

Li Fung Ching, Catherine
FZRE

Director
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at P.0. Box 309 GT, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and
trading of consumer electronic products and components and
home appliance products. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Group is Success Forever
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION/BASIS OF
PREPARATION

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$94,066,000 (2007: HK$49,439,000). In order to improve
the Group’s financial position, immediate liquidity and cash
flow and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern,
the Group is implementing the following measures:

(@) as further detailed in note 46 to the financial statements,
subsequent to the balance sheet date on 16 June 2008,
the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with the spouse and daughter of Mr. Ling
Siu Man, Simon, a director of the Company, for the
disposal of a director’s quarter of the Group, at cash
consideration of HK$34 million. The proposed disposal
transaction has been disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 16 June 2008 and is subject to
the approval of the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting on 29
July 2008;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

2.1

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PRESENTATION/BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

(b) the directors of the Company have been taking
measures to dispose of other non-core assets of the
Group; and

(c) the directors of the Company have been taking various
cost control measures to tighten the costs of operations
and various general and administrative expenses.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
financial obligations as and when they fall due, and accordingly,
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for buildings, derivative financial instruments
and certain investments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION/BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2008. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised
accounting policies and additional disclosures, the adoption
of these new and revised standards and interpretations has
had no material effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share
Transactions
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

2.2

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of
the financial statements to evaluate the significance of
the Group’s financial instruments and the nature and
extent of risks arising from those financial instruments.
The new disclosures are included throughout the
financial statements. While there has been no effect
on the financial position or results of operations of
the Group, comparative information has been included/
revised where appropriate.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures
that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital. These new disclosures are shown
in note 45 to the financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to
any arrangement in which the Group cannot identify
specifically some or all of the goods or services received,
for which equity instruments are granted or liabilities
(based on a value of the Group’s equity instruments)
are incurred by the Group for a consideration, and
which appears to be less than the fair value of the
equity instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As
the Company has only issued equity instruments to the
Group’s employees in accordance with the Company’s
share option scheme, the interpretation has had no
effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted for as
a derivative is the date that the Group first becomes
a party to the contract, with reassessment only if
there is a change to the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded
derivative requiring separation from the host contract,
the interpretation has had no effect on these financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1
April 2007, which requires that an impairment loss
recognised in a previous interim period in respect of
goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument
classified as available-for-sale or a financial asset
carried at cost is not subsequently reversed. As the
Group had no impairment losses previously reversed
in respect of such assets, the interpretation has
had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and
Treasury Share Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. This interpretation also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within the
Group. As the Group’s existing policy of accounting for
share-based payment transactions complies with the
requirements of the interpretation, the interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendment

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations'

Business Combinations?

Operating Segments’

Presentation of Financial
Statements’
Borrowing Costs’

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

Service Concession
Arrangements*

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction*

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2008

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.3

2.4

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of
HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or amended
disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations” (“SSAP 30”)
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated retained profits in the year of acquisition. On
the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated
against consolidated retained profits and is not recognised in
the income statement when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

2.4

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(©)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its holding company;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBRBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENF=HA=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

ME BERRERIE(H)

TEREGAAEAFHMESTEY
¥ BELERHEEBKASGEZ R
Bt - R BFRACEZFERD
T

Buildings 4% on the straight-line basis B PAE 5K 174%

Leasehold improvements  10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis FER ok E$- S VAR B B BB A 1R
10%%£25%

Furniture and fixtures 10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis GERES DUB R A RR R IR
10%%£25%

Equipment and tools 10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis HERIA LU R R 5B R 3%
10%%=25%

Motor vehicles 30% on the reducing balance basis o) PR R R 1%
30%

Moulds 25% on the straight-line basis i=H=1 PAE 4G551225%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBRBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, leasehold
improvements, and moulds under construction in the mainland of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”)
which are not yet ready for their intended use. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued) WM EESE)
Research and development costs 5 R B %A

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred product development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. They are
amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products but not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put into
commercial production.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. They are amortised using the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives but not
exceeding ten years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBRBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and
assesses whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract when the analysis shows
that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBRBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains
or losses on investments held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
“Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity securities that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified in any of the
above categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses recognised as a separate component of equity until
the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the
income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBRBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when the Group first
assesses there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and significant changes in the technological,
market economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

31 March 2008

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. A provision for impairment
is made for available-for-sale investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE S

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or
similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred
asset that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a
written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to
the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the
option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts and other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESIBREBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the income statement does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE S

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
(continued)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESIBREBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

i3]

MEABEFEMEL 2REEEOERE
FHE) > AR REA BEF A BRI
NENBREER B TUER SR
B EREMS R BB ARER 52
RN

AR e BBEKE - PIREREMEZ
BEOIAEPRBETEREEAXNZ
AEFXREE R ZBE - AR ERA
M PrRLIR 2 BRAE IR 02 888 - JhaT
AR 2 BERAR -

Fria®i

FHER B 1A BB IE B TE © FHERIR
R ER - K i4E MR ERARRT
R EE N SRR 2 IEE E - B
R TR -

BV B 1 B 2 B S B IS A R B
T8 2 B4 A B S O BT A
(2 BB -

BEREMBBRAEEL  REEMREBEZ
MEEBNMBERBZEEEREE
EXCHBERER  EHIR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

31 March 2008

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) from the rendering of handling fee services, when the
services have been rendered;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENF=HA=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE S

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying

W ER TEED (45)

() WA REEFEIRERL
BIAER

@ ABRARRFEEFNAERAN
FEAE - ARAZHRBTAH
TRT AFHAWEZ 5T AREK
ReRERECHEERT HE

amount of the financial assets; and 2 R

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to (e) f% B A - P RE TE A% 3R A] M BUIR
receive payment has been established. BRERNRARR -

Employee benefits BEEEF

Share-based payment transactions URGBREBZAZHXE

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose PAN/N — AR ERE BEEAT

of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —ETENF=A=1+—H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESIBREBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that
it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 :gg/(¢5ﬁ5+_5

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBREBE S

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

EBERA (&)

LR G BERZ AR S (4)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as MATEERECEELE  RiTEE
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per REFE - R BFEINRDETE o

share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2
only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested by 1 April 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentages
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESIBREBE @)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately
as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

3.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the
asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset
value or such event affecting the asset value has not been
in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the
asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on
the experience of the Group with similar assets that
are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year
end date based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar buildings. In the absence
of such information, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources, including:

(a) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for buildings
of a different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

Estimation of fair value of buildings
(continued)

(©

recent prices of similar buildings on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by
external evidence such as current market prices
for similar buildings in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of

the fair value include those related to current market

prices for similar buildings in the same location and

condition, appropriate discount rates, expected future

market prices and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of the Group’s buildings are

disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Details are contained in note 33
to the financial statements.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

3. EXEHERGEE@

EEZAEEM &)
(i) EAEBHE

i FE T IR B B I FE AR B s A AT 3K
HEBRRERMAERERRERS
B-oRAERAZEERBEES
BREEERBREAERRLAK
RIERT M 2 BB R R KB IA
FHEBREHEERAL - FEE
N A ISR MRS

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 ## | &1



82

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mtk

31 March 2008

4.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of the other business segments. Summary details of
the business segments are as follows:

(a) the electronic products and components segment
consists of the design, manufacture and sale of audio
and video products and components;

(b) the home appliance products segment consists of the
manufacture and sale of home appliance products;
and

(c) the corporate segment comprises corporate income
and expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during the
year (2007: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

4.

(a)

Business segments

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, profit and

certain asset, liability and expenditure information of

the Group’s business segments for the years ended
31 March 2008 and 2007.

Group

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Other segment revenue

Total

Segment results

Interest income and
unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year
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(a) wEHBES
TREINAEEEBBREZE
—2T\FR-DBBLF=A[=
T—BILEFENEA &M KERE
TEE ABERRAXHER -
*%E

Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Gorporate Gonsolidated
EFERREH RESHER A &8
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRNE | CETLF | ZBRRAE | CETLF | CRONE | CETCE | ZRRNE | 25T
HKS$'000 | ~ HKS'000y  HK$'000)  HKS'000  HKS'000 |  HKS'000)  HK$'000 |  HKS'000
BEFL) FETr| EETm| A¥Tn| EBFn) AiTn| EEFn| AETn
2,120,846 | 2,316,557 300,072 | 282,857 - - 2420918 2,599,414
2,040 3,604 - 43 - - 2,040 3647
2,122,886 | 2,320,161) 300,072 | 282,900 - -1 2,422,958 | 2,603,061
93,624 33919 8,319 9,047 (332) (543 101,611 2,423
3,579 19,649
(48,387) (36)
(36,870)1  (30,351)
19,933 31,685
(14,248) (7,673)
5,685 24,012
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

4.

(a)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

Business segments (continued)

Group

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information:
Depreciation and amortisation
Surplus on revaluation recognised

directly in equity
Provision
against inventories
Fair value losses/(gains) on
equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss
Impairment of an
available-for-sale investment
Capital expenditure

HERAR
NHEE
AEEE

B2E

AfboBEE:
EREH
ERNERERD

LEMBR
FERR

BATET AR
Pl US CaN
FEER/ (k)

&L
RERE

AXRER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

RNBEEXERAERAF

4. HEEE @)
(a) ¥REFES @)
xEH
Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Corporate Gonsolidated
EYERREH RESHRER 28 &8
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEBNE | CETCF | CBEMNE | ZSTLF | CEOAE | ZT30E | Z8BAE | 23348
HK$'000 ) HKS'000)  HK$'000)  HKS'000)  HK$'000 |  HKS'000)  HK$'000 |  HKS'000
BEFT| AHTr| BEFn| AFTr| EBFr| AETn| AETr| AEFn
1,567,000 | 12595104 115211 103,860 - -1 1682211 1363370
35,204 120,213
1,117,475 | 1,483,583
4979431 292,782 63,047 61,475 9 9] 560,999 | 354,266
594,726 | 587,947
1,155,725 | 942,213
76,239 70,706 8,729 7,501 - - 84,968 78,207
- 24815 - 10 - - 24,925
1,802 1,630 2,399 200 - - 4,201 1,830
- - - - - - 6,432 (8,964)
- - - - - - 13,256 -
80,246 82,958 3419 3,751 - - 83,665 86,709




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H
4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., DEEFE @)
(b) Geographical segments (b) REED
The following table presents revenue and certain TREINAEEBEEZZZT/)\F
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s —EE+E=H=+—HIt=E
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March ERMEZSHNWARSE TEE
2008 and 2007. REXER -
Group AEHE
Americas Europe Asia Pacific countries Others Consolidated
£M Bl FRERR i &4

2008 07 2008 a0 2008 a0 2008 a0 2008 207
SERNE| TR |CRRAE) CIRUE | CRRNE| CRRCE | CRRAE| JTRLE | CERNE| 22515
HKS'000}  AKSOO0|  HKS'O00)  HKSOOO|  HKSOOOY  HKSOOO)  HKSOOO|  HKSOO  HKS'OOO}  HKSOD
ERFn| EET| ARFr| GETr| EEFn| EATn| ARF) AETr| ERFr| AT

Seqment revenue; APHA:
Sales o erternal customers— HEFHRRE 11671080 1640020 eeedse| so00a4| st0869) doadte|  ae7es|  2t124| 2420918) 2500414

Other segment information: ~~ EHABER :

Seqment assets PRI

- Hong Kong -5% W 401745
- Mainland Chin ~mERH 13342241 1,081,638
Toal &t 1,717475] 1,483,563
Capital expenditure BREY

- Hong Kong -E 85080 53
- Mainland China - AR BT 8%
Tota ER 836651 86,700
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 WA - Hibg N\ B U=

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WAINNBREER 2S5 - JHig ¥ 8T
invoiced value of goods sold, net of discounts and returns, BEERNARBHNERRZE @ KT
after elimination of all significant intra-group transactions. MEEENELEREEE -
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as WA~ WA RRESE DT ¢
follows:
2008 2007
—BE0E —ETE+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
Revenue N
Manufacture and sale of BLE N
electronic products HEST
and components EmkZEH 2,120,846 2,316,557
Manufacture and sale of home SUERIHE
appliance products REBHREM 300,072 282,857
2,420,918 2,599,414
Other income and gains H b A & S
Handling fee income FHEBUWA 250 228
Bank interest income SRATH BURA 1,504 1,680
Dividend income from listed *ELHRE
investments & B A 153 134
Foreign exchange differences, net EHERFRR 1,219 544
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMHB AR K
(note 37) (K1at37) 1,922 -
Gain on disposal of items of THEME  BER
property, plant and equipment BB B = - 8,871
Others EHA 571 2,875
5,619 14,332

86 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R OB %#EBRER AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

—EENF=ZA=+—H

6. PMBigimFl

AEBOBRBARNEMERGEA)T

(crediting): HI|&IE -
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
NOTES HKS’000 HK$'000
ok BEFIT BT T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAR 2,224,861 2,474,661
Provision against inventories FERE 4,201 1,830

Fair value losses/(gains) on THEemMIAQTE

derivative financial instruments B8 (M)

— forward currency contracts, net — B RS KFERE 27 3,325 (1,582)
Cost of sales SHE KA 2,232,387 2,474,909
Depreciation e 14 73,333 70,463
Amortisation: oy

Software development costs* B B AR AR 16 75 79

Trademarks* Gl 16 280 269
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments FEsRFEN LA ERIE 15 967 1,004
Research and development costs: ﬁﬂ?{&ﬁ;ﬂ%ﬁfiﬂj

Deferred development costs amortised* R A 16 11,280 7,396

Current year expenditure REEREZ 4,789 1,090

16,069 8,486
Minimum lease payments under operating & R I F AL E R4

leases on land and buildings = 4wl 4,401 3,999
Auditors’ remuneration ZERD BN & 1,242 1,085
Employee benefits expense (including BITEMFX

directors’ remuneration — note 8): (BREEEME —28):

Wages and salaries TERH 166,140 150,282

Pension scheme contributions BRINE B 2,446 2,326

Less: Forfeited contributions** N Eﬁlﬁﬁfﬁ%’(“ - -

Net pension scheme contributions BRIKSFTEIEFFR 2,446 2,326

168,586 152,608
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEME - BEREZHEIEEB
property, plant and equipment 28, (WEs) 3,968 (8,871)

*%

The amortisation of software development costs, trademarks,
and deferred development costs for the year are included in
“Selling and distribution costs” and “Cost of sales”, respectively,
on the face of the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to offset its future employers’ contributions (2007:
Nil).

* REEMEFRABERALEE  BRE

*k

$H S ST B B AR AR B 55 59 BT AR S
Wk HERDHKA R HE
BRA] e

RZZBZNF=A=+—H " ' ~&£H
WENEHRKAIE R REHARED
BERK(ZTZLF: FT) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 #=#®

87



88

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

7. FINANCE COSTS 7.
Interest on: BLTHIEE I 2FE
Bank loans and facilities wholly ERAFAEHEEN
repayable within five years RITERREE
Finance leases BEHE
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees we

HmE< -

e RMREWMER
Commission Uitk
RIRET SR

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R OB %#EBRER AT

/

AN

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

CL =% S

2008 2007
—gEAE| —TTi4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT| _ BMTR
35,518 28,479
1,352 1,872
36,870 30,351

EEME

i

FEEENMERBETEBRERIM
AEES LT RA(T EWmARR ) R
ROIFE161REEEN T

2008 2007
ZEEAE —TELHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYETT BEFT
301 971
12,938 11,595

- 1,828

560 580
13,498 14,003
13,799 14,974




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Pang Hon Chung et
Cheng Tsang Wai g {2
Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEE

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2007: Nil).

—EE\F=A=+—H
8. EEMEw@
(a) IBIAIEBITESE

FAXNTBEILIFATES 218

&M
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
107 107
106 106
88 70
301 283

FALEENTELIFERTES
ZEMFM(ZETLEF - |) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

— ==

8.

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive

NF=HA=+—H

EENE @)
(b) BITEERIERITEE

director
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Commission  contributions  remuneration
& 2R Bie
ik BEYEH & HEIER BFe
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
2008
—FEN
Executive directors: HITESE:
Ling Siu Man, Simon ELN 300 3,588 - 194 4,082
Wong Ki Cheung HHE 300 1,644 - 97 2,041
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZEE 300 1,644 - 97 2,041
Au Wai Man BER 300 1,320 - 81 1,701
Lam Kwai Wah M 300 1,500 - 12 1,812
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary * BHR * 200 1,542 - 79 1,821
Lee Ka Yue, Peter ** FEa - - - - -
1,700 11,238 - 560 13,498
Non-executive director; FRHTES
Wong Wai Kwong, David * =&k * - - - - -
1,700 11,238 - 560 13,498

* resigned as a director on 1 December 2007

**resigned as a director on 3 August 2007

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited RO E£#EKR AR A T

*k

R-ZBZLFE+-A—BEESR
=
—EELFENA=ZHBER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive

director (continued)

2007
“TT+

Executive directors:
Ling Siu Man, Simon
Wong Ki Cheung
Li Fung Ching, Catherine
Au Wai Man
Lam Kwai Wah
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary
Lee Ka Yue, Peter

Non-executive director:
Wong Wai Kwong, David

8. EEMEw@
(b)) BHMITEBERFEHITEER(4H)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Commission contributions remuneration
e 2R BiRe
we ENEH e SRR wHe
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFTT BETFT EEFIT BEETFT
WITEES
EDX - 3,888 - 194 4,082
HHE = 1,944 = 97 2,041
== - 1,944 = 97 2,041
BER = 1,620 = 81 1,701
M 300 510 1,828 12 2,650
B 300 1,689 - 99 2,088
&) - - - - -
600 11,595 1,828 580 14,603
FRTES
H5EX 88 - - = 88
688 11,595 1,828 580 14,691

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2007: Nil).

TR BESYWEFELNEXF
ERECAMENZH( =TT

tFE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —F=F

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

All five highest paid employees during the years ended
31 March 2008 and 2007 were directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above.

10. TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group: AEE
Current — Hong Kong B85
Charge for the year AFEEEHA
Overprovision in prior years AR E Z5TR
Current — Elsewhere EH - H =
Charge for the year REEEA
Deferred (note 33) EIE (K7:%33)
Tax charge for the year FEMIBEH

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited RO E£#EKR AR A T

NF=HA=+—H
AfimE#HES

REE_ZF/\FE_ZFFLF==F
—RALEEE FELUSSHEEHR/E
% ERREMEFBER LS o

#iIE

EREFERBEDIRRNFEEREBRR

ZAhET ERBR A AB E17.5% (ZFF

HF 17.5%)5HR o RN E A [E 2 &
RBRFBIBEDRBEANEBLE XK

El%ZﬁﬁiW~m%&ﬁ%%ﬁ&
FRE b AR &5

2008 2007
—BENE| —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT T
6,666 2,176
(158) (303)
8,362 1,637
(622) 4,163
14,248 7,673




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

10.

TAX (continued)

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the countries in which the

Company, and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge

at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable

rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are

as follows:

Group

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Lower tax rate for
other countries
Loss not subject to tax,
due to concession
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses utilised from
previous periods
Tax losses not recognised
Deferred tax not recognised,
due to concession
Others

Tax charge at the
Group’s effective rate

BB AT

AT RE
AEZHA
EHER
BERE
REHREM
BARK B
BT HRAS
BRI E
BERBRA
OGRS
NEHHCBA
ZHBER
RER L HABHR
RHHEEMA
B ELHE
Aftr

A EEEERE
HERARER

14,248

10. #lE (&)
BEARBBAEFREAA T RELHE
ARFEER S EEMES 8 HEY
HEREEERESE S RERR S
& LA REABE (A AT E) BT
Bk @EMT -

F%E
2008 2007
ot L V3 21 IV
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
#EFT EEFT
19,933 31,685
3,488 175 5,545 17.5
(1,155) (5.8) (84) (0.3)
1,398 7.0 401 1.3
(158) 0.8) (303) (0.9)
(1,874) (9.4) (1,936) (6.1)
6,373 32.0 2,293 7.2
(1,029) (5.2) (1,227) (3.9)
6,395 321 3,713 11.7
(68) 0.3) (536) (1.7)
878 44 (193) (0.6)
5

7,673 24.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

11.

12.

13.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a loss
of HK$7,978,000 (2007: profit of HK$40,007,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 36(b)).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year (2007: HK1 cent per ordinary share).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$5,685,000 (2007: HK$24,012,000) and
the weighted average number of HK$979,068,044 (2007:
952,889,962) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31
March 2008 and 2007 have not been disclosed, as the share
options outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share for these years.

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

11.

12.

13.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

FAEHERBAANEBLEEE
FE i )

KRR MBBRETFEERBEZE_ZTZT)N
FZRA=T—HLEFEARAERTE
AL 4R 6 m T B 15 B 18 75 857,978,000
TL(ZZEZTLF 5 F7%%40,007,0007T )
(Bt #E36(b)) °

iz 2

EERTEBREAFE ZEMRE
(ZZZ2LF - FREBRBEUL) -

FABLBERBA ARG
Tk

BRERNBFDEAFERRF T RARKR
ANFEH A FE AL & T 7 %5,685,0007T ( =
TT L BH24,012,0007T) R AFEE
B 17 & BRI T 159 £0979,068,044 %
(ZZTZT 4 : 952,889,962/% )5t & o

HRBEE-ZTTNFR-_FTTLF=A
St HLEFERRTENERESS
MEENERERBNEREEER
BUBFRBEZEFREZEREERAN -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREE
Group XEE

Leasehold  Furniture

Construction  improve- and  Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments  fixtures  and tools  vehicles Moulds Total
il

#7 ERIE HRKE GHRKE RERIR  RE  BA L)
HKSO00  HKSO0D  KKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKSOOO  HKS'00

BRFr B¥Fr A¥Fr ARFn A¥Fi AWTn ARfr AT

31 March 2008 R-BENEZR=+-8
At 31 March 2007 and R-EELE=A=1-H}R

at 1 April 2007: “ELLEMA-A:

Cost or valuation RARHE 20790 106,034 111,191 3157 482357 10942 172795 1,191,636
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE - - (59016)  (26446) (256945)  (8,379) (136,600)  (487,386)
Net carrying amount BEFE 20790 106,034 52175 11,081 205412 2563 36,195 704250
At 1 April 2007, net of RIEEHE=A=1-H"

accumulated depreciation EMBEE 270790 106,034 52,075 11,081 225412 2563 36,195 704250
Additions e - %86 14402 2,614 1742 - 19609 79,653
Disposals ik (286) (640) e @ (6316) (572) (930)  (8,748)
Depreciation provided Emirit

during the year JiTE (12,691) 5 (7093 (2490) (28497 (648)  (21.914)  (73,333)
Transfers g2 5128 (61,29) 15 3) 50 = 4,020 -
Exchange realignment 3k 20,106 8,388 2,387 355 2,990 36 - 326
At 31 March 2008, net of RZEE\E=A=1-H"

accumulated depreciation EMBENE 35172 81713 _ 61886 11513 201,381 1379 36,980 _ 736,084
At 31 March 2008; REE\EZA=+-H:
Cost or valuation A A 36385 87,773 130999 40989 485155 10270 169,209 1,272,780
Accumulated depreciation e (13.213) - (69113)  (29476) (283,774)  (8,891) (132,229)  (536.696)
Net carrying amount REFE 395172 8T713 61886 11513 201,381 1379 36,980 _ 736,084
Analysis of cost or valuation: RARAED
At cost BHAR 77595 81713 130999 40989 485155 10270 169209 1,001,990
At 31 March 2007 valuation RZEE+E=R=1-H
LIt 270,790 - - - - - - 270,790

348,385 87,773 130,999 40,989 _ 485,159 10270 _ 169,209 _ 1,272,780
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Group

31 March 2007

At 31 March 2006 and
at 1 April 2006
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Surplus on revaluation

Depreciation provided
during the year

Transfers

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2007:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Analysis of cost or valuation:

At cost

At 31 March 2007 valuation

96 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

—EFENF=ZA=1+—H
14. Y% - BERRE@®
F5E
Leasehold ~ Furniture
Construction ~ improve- and  Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments fitures  and tools  vehicles Moulds Total
HE
BF TFRIR DEEE GAREE ZERIA B ER B
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BEFr  EEFT BETn BETr BEFn B¥Tn BETn BETx
RZFE+E=A=1-H
RZEEAEZA=1-HR
“E55FMA-A:
BAREE 53483 89192 103910 31445 426850 9484 173825 1,088,189
ZitE (9,991) - (49,191)  (23,983)  (226,809) (1722)  (137,373)  (455,069)
BHTE 243,492 89,192 54,719 7462 200,041 1,762 36,452 633,120

W-FEAEZRZt-8

BHBEZiE u3492 89192 54719 7462 200,041 1762 36452 633,120
TE - 1542 2,769 5801 53411 155 162710 95205
e - - 9 (29) (109) (95) (268) (510)
EfEH 24,925 = = S = = - U9
ERstiz

LhE (10,709) - (G205 (2268 (29,038) (676)  (19567)  (70463)
B - (4,108) 800 - - - 3,308 -
AR 13,082 5,530 2,101 115 1,107 18 - 2195
R-EBrE=f=t-0-

EMREHTE 20790 106,034 52175 11,081 _ 225412 2563 36195 704250
R-EELEZA=+-H:

A ME 7079 106034 111191 37s 482357 10942 172795 1,191,636

ZiHE = - (59016 (26446 (256945)  (8379)  (136,600)  (487,386)

EAFE 270790 106,034 52175 11081 _ 225412 2563 36195 704,250
AR BT -

B (E - 10603 111,091 75T 482357 10942 172795 920,846

R-EZLEZA=1-H

LB 270,790 5 = S = = - 20790

270790 _ 106,034 _ 111,191 37,520

RNBEEXEERAER2F

482,357 10942 172795 _ 1191636



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EEN\E=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ - BERRE@®

(continued)

The Group’s buildings were held under the following lease
terms:

At valuation: B{HE
Held under medium term leases BHREENER

The Group’s buildings, other than the current year’s additions,
were revalued at 31 March 2007 by Sallmanns (Far East)
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers,
on an open market, existing use basis at HK$270,790,000.
No professional valuation of such buildings was made as at
31 March 2008 because the directors are of the opinion that
the carrying amounts of such buildings as at 31 March 2008
are not significantly different from the carrying amounts at
31 March 2007 and that a further professional valuation
would involve expense out of proportion to the values of the
shareholders of the Company.

No professional valuation of the current year’s additions of
buildings was made as at 31 March 2008 because the directors
are of the opinion that the fair values of the additions of such
buildings at 31 March 2008 are not significantly different from
their carrying amounts at 31 March 2008.

Had the whole class of the Group’s buildings been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts
would have been included in the financial statements at
approximately HK$221,715,000 at 31 March 2008 (2007:
HK$169,150,000).

Included in the total amount of equipment and tools at 31
March 2008 were assets held under finance leases with a net
book value of HK$33,970,000 (2007: HK$41,324,000).

As at 31 March 2008, the Group was in the process of obtaining
the building ownership certificates in respect of certain factories
of the Group located in Mainland China with a carrying value
of HK$164,823,000 (2007: HK$106,613,000).

As detailed in note 38(i), deposits for acquisition of items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$5,457,000 (2007:
HK$31,014,000) were utilised as part of the considerations paid
for the purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
during the year.

AEBEEFRIATHEOFS

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
&t oh [ 2 3 st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT _BETT BETT

9,514 325,658 335,172

A:%lm%j—u(zwrz/@ﬁﬁm\mm
By EEMGEMAM(RR)BRA
TEEHF=ZF=+—HRA Sﬁmiﬁt
EITE L A B 270,790,000 c A==
ENF=ZA=+t—BUVEHZSETE
THEMRGRE WIHBEREERE  R=
TENF=ZA=1+—"H ZSEFZE
HEE -_TTE+tF=-A=+—HZEH
BEYESAZE MBE—SHEMBE
FTd Rz B AN A &) IR 2 (B E A
1878 o

RERNREZEBFTUER_TT/\F=H
=+ BHETEXRMGBE " BIHARESER
B RERTRBEZERHER_ZZN\F
ZA=T-AZEHERR -_ZTTN\F=
A=t—RZEAELTEEREER

fid 7 55 [ BT B 48 Bl 12 T 3% B AN OB R 5T

WEAER: AIZEEER-_ZZT )N\
F=H= +—E|ZHEE1EFE¢;<£’J,%
#221,715,000c( — T T £ F: F K
169,150,00007T ) 5T A 53R 3% ©

RZEENF=ZA=Z+—"HHXRERT
Bz e E R FE AP 33,970,000
T(ZZEZTHF ¢ B %41,324,0007T ) &
MERESE -

RZZEENF=ZA=+—H x5 E
FMASEMAPEABERTESS
164,823,000 ( — B Z + F : B K&
106,613,000 ) Z & FF%HX SEEF
BHERE o

ﬁDMTEI%()Fﬁ#L BRI BB - K
B X EEEB MG £ 5 %5,457,0007C
(ZZZT 4 #¥31,014,0000T) 2 B
EXNFRNBEZEME  BEERE
HEREORE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

14.

15.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

At 31 March 2008, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
net book value of approximately HK$44,520,000 (2007: Nil)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 31).

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15.
Group

Carrying amount at 1 April REA—RBZEEE
Disposal e

Recognised during the year FRER

Exchange realignment ME W AR

Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—BZEAEE
Current portion MBNER

Non-current portion ERE I

The Group’s leasehold lands were held under the following
lease terms:

Held under medium term leases EHEBEOEE

As at 31 March 2008, the Group has been applying for land
use right certificates in respect of certain of the Group’s
leasehold lands in Mainland China. These leasehold lands had
an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$17,224,000
(2007: HK$16,231,000).

Leasehold land of HK$16,632,000 (2007: Nil) is pledged
for certain bank loans as further detailed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

— ==

14.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

NF=HA=+—H

W& BERRE@

RZEZENF=A=+—H xEAH
BRTENF(EA)EE 44,520,0000( -+
F:RI)IZAETEFERAKRE 2 — K
RITEE ZIEE R (M) o

Ef TS
A%
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BB F T
45,159 44,798
(2,068) 5
(967) (1,004)
2,126 1,365
44,250 45,159
(971) (1,004)
43,279 44,155

AREBEZHE LM IRATHOESE ¢

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
&t oh [ Py b st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BETIT

15,227 29,023 44,250

RZBEEZNF=ZA=+—H Kx&EE—
ERETHRPEAMZBE LB E LT
HE AR ZET 2 REFES L
4 58 H17,224000C( — B F B
#16,231,0007T) ©

MEFFERERMTFEIE— S HH  ANEH
i 75 #16,632,0000c( 2T L F : T)
Z2HELMIEAEE TRITER ZEKE

[}
u[alig



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. H|EEE
Group XEE
Software Deferred
development development
costs Trademarks costs Total
REFERE [ BERERF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFTL BEFT BETT
31 March 2008 ZES\E=A=1-H
Cost at 1 April 2007, netof —ZEZ+HFEMA—BZAA -
accumulated amortisation 231k 2T EE 631 990 25,607 27,228
Additions NE - 53 7,070 7,123
Amortisation provided FREH
during the year AR (75) (280) (11,280) (11,635)
At 31 March 2008 “ZZ\F=R=1—-H 556 763 21,397 22,716
At 31 March 2008: —EEN\F=f=1-8:
Cost KA 42 2,821 56,237 59,800
Accumulated amortisation e 5 (186) (2,058) (34,840) (37,084)
Net carrying amount FHFE 556 763 21,397 22,716
31 March 2007 “EE+FZR=+—H
Cost at 1 April 2006, netof —ZEXEMA—HZRA
accumulated amortisation 231k 2T EE 284 1,116 15,833 17,233
Additions NE 426 143 17,170 17,739
Amortisation provided FREH
during the year HEr (719) (269) (7,396) (7,744)
At 31 March 2007 “EE+FZR=+—H 631 990 25,607 21,228
At 31 March 2007: —EEtFE=f=1-H:
Cost KA 742 2,768 49,165 52,675
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZFrE3H (111) (1,778) (23,558) (25,447)
Net carrying amount RHFE 631 990 25,607 27,228
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

17.

18.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

—FFNF=A=+—H

— ==

GOODWILL 17. B8
As detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group BB SRR M 2. 4FTRE ML - AEEfE
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted BEBV GRS ED E35E A8 E M F
goodwill in respect of business combinations which occurred X BHR_ZEE—FRINESAHA
prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated EENBEBEERSASRB R L -
retained profits.
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained RZEZENF=ZA=+—H =2 —
profits, arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary prior to FUA—B 2z AWKE— KB 2R
1 April 2001, was HK$2,000 as at 31 March 2008 (2007: EATHEERGRERBEMNEHNEE
HK$2,000). BERBE200T(ZTZLF : B
2,0007T) °
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. M BASIH#ER
Company
25
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE_E T ARD BB AR E 58,812 58,812
Due from subsidiaries ME N BIR K 211,273 192,735
270,085 251,547

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within one year from the balance
sheet dates. The carrying amounts of the amounts due from
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

B AR RRGERTIEERR - RERBA
REZEEAEZ —FAREE - MIBARR
R REERLQAFERS -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. MMBASIHEZE @)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: BB ARFEBEMOT ¢
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company activities
AL, BT i FAT G
AT B REEME, HERFEE IHEESEE ETEEH
Direct Indirect
HE i
Agility Investments British US$1 100 = Investment
Limited Virgin Islands E holding
RERLES REZR
Dongguan Gold Beam Mainland China HK$23,310,540 - 100 Manufacture of
Electronics Co., Ltd.# B A 75123,310,54070 electronic
RS HET components and
BRAA home appliance
products
EETFEH
KR EEREm
Dongguan Tonic Mainland China HK$90,299,051 = 100 Manufacture of
Electronic Co., Ltd.# FE A 751590,299,0517T electronic
RERNET products
BRAA EEFEM
Dongguan Xin Lian Mainland China RMB58,290,444 - 100 Manufacture of
Digital Technology FEIAH  ARS58,290,444 7T electronic
Co., Ltd.* products
REBBEIERIR HEBFEM
BRAA
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18.

31 March 2008

Name

]
ol

Gold Beam Developments
Limited
THRERERAA]

Panatone Licensing
Limited

Tonic Digital
Products Limited*

RAOBEER
ERAR]

Tonic DVB
Marketing Limited

Tonic Electronics
(B.V.I.) Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations
230 ) A
B RERNE

Hong Kong
A

British
Virgin Islands
HKEERHS

Hong Kong
o

British

Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
EBRARS/
B 3

British
Virgin Islands
RBEXES

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value
of issued/
registered

paid-up capital
BT i
HERAEE

HK$2
BT

US$1
IE

HK$100
A EE1007T

US$0.01
0.01%7T

HK$1
BT

RA 5 4R R B o

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

18. MRMIBASIHE R @)

Percentage

of equity
attributable

to the Company

KATIFE
TS
Direct Indirect
BE %
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 -

RNEBEXEERAER QT

Principal
activities

EEREH

Trading and
manufacture

of components
EERMETH

Holding of
intellectual property
rights

LRIk
ERERER

Trading of
digital products
BEEHBER

Trading of
electronic products

BEEETEM

Investment holding

REERK



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

B
oif

Tonic Electronics
Limited
RENETERAR

Tonic Enterprises
Limited

Tonic International
Limited

Tonic International

Investment Limited

Tonic Investment
(B.V.1.) Limited

Tonic Marketing
Limited

Tonic Technology
(Shenzhen) Ltd.*

RO CGRYI)
BRAT!

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
2310 v
B REEE,

Hong Kong
o

British
Virgin Islands
REBEXHSE

British
Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

KBRS,/

A

British
Virgin Islands

RBEZES

British
Virgin Islands
RBEXHE

British
Virgin Islands
RERZHS

Mainland China
B A i

Nominal value
of issued/
registered

paid-up capital
BT
HERFEE

Ordinary

HK$200
Non-voting
Deferred®
HK$300,000
L@k E2007T
BEREEETKR
75 1£300,0007C

US$1
E

HK$0.01
EH0.017T

US$1
E

HK$0.01
&#0.017T

US$0.01
0.01% 7T

RMB15,400,000
AR #15,400,0007C

RAF 3R P

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

18. MRMIBASI#E R @)

Percentage

of equity

attributable

to the Company

AAF MG

RIET L
Direct Indirect
Hi kS

Principal
activities

TEEH

- 100 Trading and
manufacture
of electronic
products
EERBE
BEFEM

Holding of
intellectual property
rights

A A EERER

Provision of

quality control
Services

1R o B 4 ol PR S

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
TEERR

Research,
development

and production of
electronics products
e - R
REESFEM
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31 March 2008

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

B
ol

Tonic Technology
Limited
RABHEARA A

Tonic Trading
Development Limited

ROBBER
BRAR

Tonic Venture
Capital Limited

RNBIERE
BRAR

TA Limited

B RL B m
BRA)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
AL

B REEBE,

Hong Kong
o

Hong Kong
o

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
FE R

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

Nominal value
of issued/
registered

paid-up capital
BT i
HERAEE

HK$10,000
#110,0007C

HK$100
A EE1007T

HK$1,000,000
75#1,000,0007T

HK$10,000
75 #10,0007T

RMB500,000
AR #500,0007C

R 5 4R R B o

— ==

NF=HA=+—H

18. MRMIBASIHE R @)

RNBEXEERAER2F

Percentage

of equity
attributable

to the Company

AT
TS
Direct Indirect

BE =
100 -

- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal
activities

EX 3+ 3

Investment holding,
manufacture

and trading of
electronic products
and components
REER

EFERREHN

Trading of

electronic products

and components
m

BE®

EmRkEHF

Investment holding
REZER

Trading of home
appliance products

1B X
RE

I

\

o

Bo &

&

Manufacture of
electronic
components
PETTER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. MR BATIHERE @)

4 Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member e WIER LK EAMBBHEA(FESD )KL
firm of the Ernst & Young Global Network. KEFRMEE 7 AR B A REH o
# Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises # INEBERE
& The non-voting deferred shares carrying the right to one-half ## ERERELIRMDIZE AREEBR
of the profits after the holders of the ordinary shares have A AUELE 1,000,000,000,000 JT
received a dividend of HK$1,000,000,000,000, have no right RERES—E5F - BEE
to vote at general meetings, and carry the right to receive REEREAXSIRE - FREFLAREX
one-half of the balance of any surplus in a return of capital FREA AUWEGE B & 7K 42 58 75 1
in a winding up after the holders of the ordinary shares have 500,000,000,000,000 JT & Y BR (L {a] 22
received a total return of HK$500,000,000,000,000. None of B — Y RBEAERORKRAK - REH
the non-voting deferred shares was held by members of the KERAANEERMEREEIRER
Group at the balance sheet date. EERAD ©
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. TfHHEZHRSE
Group Company
F%H 45
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\E e e “EEAE ZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFIT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Unlisted equity investment, FLEHRAEE -
at cost BEAE 24,366 24,366 24,366 24,366
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R (24,366) (11,110) (24,366) (11,110)
- 13,256 - 13,256
Club debentures, at fair value 285 BATE - 963 - =
- 14,219 - 13,256
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

The above investments were designated as available-for-sale
financial asset and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investment is stated at
cost less impairment.

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

19. THtHEZRE @)

LHRERE BT G S S AR R
50 2 540 A L R ©

FE b AT AN R A BN IR (B
5l -

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited H®E OB Z£#&EREMR A 5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

20. OTHER RECEIVABLE

21.

Other receivable

Portion classified as current asset

Non-current portion

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

20. HubEWRRIE

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—BENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BB F T
H b fEWRIE 4,780 5,706
GEARBEE LS (2,310) (926)
EMBNER 2,470 4,780

The carrying amount of the above other receivable approximates

to its fair values.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired and
it relates to receivables for which there was no history of

default.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable

Portion classified as current asset

Non-current portion

JE W & 3R
BRE/NEEERD

FERBE D

ok

The loans receivable represent unsecured and interest-free

advances to a staff member of the Group and its carrying

amount approximates to its fair value.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate

to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

bt E A EWGRIE 2 BREEEE A FE
GEESIY

tHEERECBRIRE - MELE
RECHZERRERER -

21. FElRER

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
93 281
ia (93) (188)
- 93

EUREFERTAREEINEERMR
BER  MEREERERFERS -

tREERECBRIONE - LB
BREZEHEELERKEREH O
3 8 K B FOEK ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mtk

31 March 2008

22. INVENTORIES 22.
Raw materials FRAt
Work in progress fE&
Finished goods BIPK

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23.

Accounts receivables
Bills receivables

—FFN\F=H=+—H

JFE s Bl R
eSS

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on

credit. The credit period is generally 30 days, extending up
to 90 days for major customers. The Group seeks to maintain

strict control over its outstanding receivables in order to

minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the

fact that the Group’s accounts and bills receivables relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is no significant

concentration of credit risk.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

RNBEXEERAER2F

EH

Group

AEH
2008 2007
—BRNE| —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BB FIT
250,328 148,515
175,810 120,193
100,697 46,801
526,835 315,509

FE U AR 7k R B4R

Group

F %M
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BRI BT T
195,589 186,348
12,135 12,814
207,724 199,162

rEEREFPFESRREIEREES
- EEH-—RR=TH TEZTFH
EEHRZRIOE - AEENRKEH
R Ui [B] e W SR TR A 1S R RE AR ) - DARES
FERR BHREENEASEERE
ABEHER - ERFILE L AREE
Z YRR R ERE S RAMARER
A EEXEESRT 2BER °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

23.

—EENF=ZHA=1+—H

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. FEWERFAR RER @)
(continued)
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills receivables REBNEE QIR HH RINGEE
as at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date and STEMEBBERESR R ERREONMOT ¢
net of provisions, is as follows:
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —EELF
HK$’000 Percentage HK$’000 Percentage
BEFT Bt BB F T IZpye
0 to 30 days ZT&Zx=+H 126,393 61 125,828 63
31 to 60 days =+—%+H 32,993 16 10,098 5
61 to 90 days ANT—Z=N+H 16,950 8 47,828 24
Over 90 days @A 31,388 15 15,408 8
207,724 100 199,162 100

The Group’s accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair

values.

AEBEZERUEARZRESRE RER

EEEEQTEMRS o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H
23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. FEWERFR RER @)
(continued)
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills receivables I FEAR BB EN RS B KRR R RE
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows: HBRES DATRA T -
Group
xEE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT IT BB F T
Neither past due nor impaired R H R ARORE 129,252 128,333
Less than 30 days wHELR=+H 35,693 19,001
30 to 90 days past due mH=+RAZEN+H 42,779 51,828
207,724 199,162
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate 3 48 260 B 3R (B 2 FE Wi R SR B B i 3 4
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there RS I REZDHREFLER -

was no recent history of default.

110 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R OB %#EBRER AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

23.

24,

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

FACTORED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

At 31 March 2008, the Group factored trade receivables of
HK$118,451,000 (2007: Nil) to banks on a non-recourse
basis for cash. The Group continued to recognise the factored
accounts receivables in the consolidated balance sheet because,
in the opinion of the Board, the Group still retained the risks
and rewards of ownership associated with the accounts
receivables and the financial assets derecognition conditions as
stipulated in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement have not been fulfilled. Accordingly, bank advances
from the factoring of the Group’s accounts receivables have
been accounted for as liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet. As at 31 March 2008, these factoring facilities were
secured by a corporate guarantee granted by the Company,
cross-corporate guarantees granted by certain subsidiaries
and the Company. The maturity date of the factored accounts
receivables range from 60 to 90 days. No impairment is made
on the factored accounts receivables.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

23.

24,

FEUGBR T R 48 ()

BHEREZ BRERREEREER
BERHABCHZETBYIEF AR -
REEEER AN EEERIEEXN
HE) MUETERDERSATEZRK
B MARRESZTRRBARILEEK
tEHRE 2 - AN B3 M 3 bt 5 A5 B
FATAERREEMERRET

FE M £ £ U ER RR SR

R_ZEENF=ZA=+—0 A£EEZ
15 3B P 7 B E 8 5 #5118,451,0000T ( =
TETLF  B)NE HRBREREERR
RARTERRE - NEBEBENRE
EEBBERERABRKRAIRERNR R
HAEERAAEENREEMESRE
WEFNERREER UARKREFESE
BEITEBFEIRI T A R

FFEIFTHN SR EEMBRERIKME
Hit - AEBERERRFREREROERT
ENERGEEEABRIIEAE - B
—EENFZAZ=+—H8 ' ZERHERK
BEFAARRREHEELRER LR
ETHBAREARNREAAEHOCE
EREER - BURMARIEERZR Z 5 H
BN FEARTZEATB - BEEREWRRS
REBERRIELRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mtk

31 March 2008

24. FACTORED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s factored accounts receivables

as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

TE=1H
=T—EXRTH
NT—EATHA
BNt A

An aged analysis of the Group’s factored accounts receivables

that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 30 days
30 to 90 days past due

112 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited RO B %#BREMR AT

KRB R ARBE
BN ="1H

BH=THEATH

=]

—FFN\F=H=+—H

4 At

8 B e EWRN R ERRER
g LN

Group
%M

2008

b 220N
HK$’000
BYETT

FE U IR FHCERBR X (42)

2007
—ETLF
HK$°000
BT T

40,172
31,231
36,728
10,320

118,451

Group
G !

2008
b £ 282

HK$’000
BT

I FEAR AR E B A R B R MR (R R BR
FHREBE DT

2007
—EELF
HK$’000
BEFIT

90,176
28,275

118,451




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

25.

26.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES
Prepayments TETRIA
Deposits and other receivables e R H A fEYRIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables approximate to their fair values. None of
the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 26.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BB LMRARE -
AT (B

Listed equity investments in
Hong Kong, at fair value

The above equity investments at 31 March 2008 and 2007 were
classified as held for trading. The fair values of the listed equity
investments are based on quoted market prices.

The market value of the Group’s equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$3,552,000.

—EENF=ZHA=1+—H

HRIE e REBEW
I

Group

FEHEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETIT BT T
18,396 23,424
2,946 38,348
21,342 61,772

REBFENKIE - 12E K H th fE R IE
CEEEERAENFTERSE - LEER
EoaHSORE - CEREE 2R
BEMEBWESREGHE ITHITEXSTR

BRAFEFABRZREFR

&
Group
F%E
2008 2007
—BENE| —TTLHE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFIT BB FIT
4,080 10,512

ERBRARAR - BENFR-BFL
FZAZ+-BROMAREERE - E
TRARA 2 A FERTIBREN L -

AEBZ A FEFABEZBEARER

ZEVBBRUERBZTEIORBE
3,552,0007T °
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

31 March 2008

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts REIEEEL

ft

op

The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts
approximate to their fair values.

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet
the criteria for hedge accounting. Net losses of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounted to HK$3.3 million were charged
to the income statement during the year (2007: net gains of
HK$1.6 million were credited to the income statement).

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had outstanding forward
currency contracts with an aggregate notional amount of
approximately HK$502 million (2007: HK$662 million) to hedge
payables denominated in United States dollars (“US$”).

RNBEEXEERAER2F

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

NF=HA=+—H

fTESMTA

Group

AERE
2008 2007
“EENAE| —TTLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
ERFiT B FT
Assets/ Assets/
(liabilities) (liabilities)
B5E BE/

(E&f8) (BfE)

(3,325) 1,582

HEBANZEEmERZEAFEM

o

TR

AREBODUZHRAEESHNERE
HIWAFEE PSR Z INERR ©
U EETATAZEBREIRAEE
3,300,000t ERFARKREZRNKR(=
ZTHF RRERFARRFRABE
1,600,0007T) °

RZBEENF=ZA=+—8" ' ~£E8E
4215 5T HUEE 49 A 75 #5502,000,0007T ( =
T T+ ¢ B 1662,000,0007T ) 2 A F
ERIAEBAENEPENET(ET])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

28.

29.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. MERMITERHF
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of REEBR KA URARETAR
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted W VEABEBZRERBTER A
to HK$4,919,000 (2007: HK$14,807,000). The RMB is not 7 44,919,000 ( — T T+ F: B K
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under 14,807,0007T) - ARBANAIEHALIRA
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and HEMEE - SR - RIBETEAMMINES
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign IBENAEE  EERNEEEHRE @ &N
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EEREEREETINEER ZRITHE
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct ARBEHBABHMEE o
foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily BTN S B EE RIBITERANEBEEE
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with BRI K F B o IRITEF TIF A I £
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The Hi R B RSN R IF(E8BR1T - K&
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate NRTEE7 REEEENFERE -
to their fair values.
ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 29. FE{TERRX
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payables as at AREBRGEERRBRZHETENER
the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as RRAREROTIAT
follows:
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —ZETEF
HK$’000 Percentage HK$°000 Percentage
BETIT Bk BT T H 7t

0 to 30 days TE=+H 230,043 46 111,368 39
31 to 60 days =+—=Z=X+H 66,951 13 44,628 15
61 to 90 days ANT—ENTH 67,128 13 44,869 16
Over 90 days i@+ H 143,734 28 87,543 30

507,856 100 288,408 100
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

30.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER

PAYABLES

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

The Group’s accounts payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled ranges from 30 to 120 days. The

carrying amounts of the accounts payables approximate to

their fair values.

Deferred income
Other payables
Accruals

EFE WA
H A 3R
fERT &M

Other payables are non interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
and the Company’s other payables approximate to their fair

values.

RNBEEXERAERAT

30. EtEEREMEMNRIE
AEBCENERABEER—RR="
E-BHZTHALS - BNERZER
BEHEQNFERES °

Group Company

F5E AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
“BEN\E TSt F —EE0E —E2T+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT BEFT BETT
4,191 4,062 - -
6,179 2,643 9 9
42,773 59,153 - 5
53,143 65,858 9 9

Hih BN RIERRERTFEHFRAR=(E
A o NEBRAR B E AR 5IR 2 R

EEEEQTEMRS o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

Current

Finance lease payables
(note 32)

Bank overdraft — unsecured

Bank loans — secured

Bank loans — unsecured

Trust receipt loans

Non-current
Finance lease payables
(note 32)

Bank loans — secured

Bank loans — unsecured

EN#A
REMERENE
(Hi:£32)
RITEY — BIEF
BITER—HEA

RITER - EEN

ERBEBER

FEENHA
REMERENZE
(H:£32)

RITEFR-BEN

RITER - BER

Effective
interest
rate (%)

BIRFIE%)

3.38 - 8.36

7.75

4.04 - 8.41

313 -4.79

313 -4.55

3.38 - 8.36

4.38 - 8.41

3.18-3.23

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

31. stERITRHEMGES

Maturity
25

March 2009
—ETNF=HA

On demand
BEk

March 2009
—ETNF=A

March 2009
—ETNF=HA

June 2008
—ETN\FA

April 2009 -
September 2010
ZZETNFEMAZE
—E-TENA

April 2009 -
September 2013
“EENENARE
—E-=FfA

April 2009 -
April 2011
—ETNEMAE
—E——%FNA

Group

F5EH
2008 2007
—BB0E ZETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT JEEFT
8,234 10,640
4,299 -
11,664 =
98,315 133,464
180,671 229,007
303,183 373,111
6,891 15,653
56,295 -
33,500 141,132
96,686 156,785
399,869 529,896
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

31.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

—EENF=A=+—AH
INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 3. SAERITREMESE =)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Group
F&H
2008 2007
—BE0\E TETLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Analysed into: waRiv=1%
Bank loans repayable: AR THFHEZNRITENR
Within one year or on demand —FARBREEE 294,949 362,471
In the second year FoF 38,508 92,632
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZFZFERTF (BEEEBWT) 51,287 48,500
384,744 503,603
Finance lease payables: BMERSEM IR
Within one year —FR 8,234 10,640
In the second year EF 6,841 8,417
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEELT (BEEEMT) 50 7,236
15,125 26,293
399,869 529,896

As at 31 March 2008, all the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by a corporate guarantee granted by the Company,
cross-corporate guarantees granted by certain subsidiaries
and the Company, and mortgages over certain of the Group’s
buildings and prepaid land lease premiums, which had an
aggregate carrying value at 31 March 2008 of approximately
HK$44,520,000 and HK$16,632,000 respectively (2007: Nil). As
disclosed in note 43(a) to the financial statements, under the
terms of a loan agreement, the chairman of the Company, Mr.
Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest shareholder and
is actively involved in the management and business of the
Group, is required to maintain at least 40% of the beneficial
interests in shareholdings in the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings approximately to their fair values. The
fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are estimated as the present values of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial
instruments.

RNEBEXEERAER2F

RZZEZENEFE=ZRA=+—H " FiIE4 &%
lmﬁﬁ%§ﬂ$$Q7&ﬁW¢%
BR EZETHEAAEAKXDNRERE
EHOEER URAREER -2

FZRA=+—HEEBESRILESE
44,520,000 X 7% #16,632,000C( = =
T+FE D) 2ETEFZRIBUKTE
N EREEER - WO B HRE
BisEa3(a) Tk dR - IRIBE I EER
KRR EFEELNEEERE —HAR
R WHEGL2EAEENEERFER

BRARNRZEREEFT R LIDE R
i -

AEEZFBRITREMEE ZREE
HENFERS - FFERTREMER
ZRFEGFAIABELAERTAZE
FHHME/RBRKRERZIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

32.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

—EENF=ZHA=1+—H

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for its

operations. These leases are classified as finance leases and

have remaining lease terms ranging from one to four years. At

31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease payments under

finance leases and their present values were as follows:

Group

F5E

Amounts payable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive

Total minimum finance
lease payments

Future finance charges

Total net finance lease
payables

Portion classified as current
liabilities (note 31)

Non-current portion (note 37)

AR THFEEE -

—&R

FE_F

F=FERF
(BREBEERWE)

MERERE
HersE

ARBEER

BREMERNFUR
A

BEARBAGEDH
(K17%31)

ERBILH (HiF31)

32. BMEHEREMNRIE

AEBEHERBESE THE RESBIEXKE

e - ZEHAYARMERE - 2T

HENTF—ZEZENFAE R NF

—A=+—H RREHEEANKEKE

BHcBERERENT :

Present value Present value

Minimum Minimum of minimum of minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

REHES REHE

=iEHEE REHE HE BE

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EEN\E ZETLF —EEN\E ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETFT BETT BETT BETT

8,885 11,904 8,234 10,640

7,050 9,096 6,841 8,417

51 7,506 50 7,236

15,986 28,506 15,125 26,293
(861) (2,213)
15,125 26,293
(8,234) (10,640)
6,891 15,653
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

33. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during
the year are as follows:

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

33. BEHIE

FRAEEHBRRBEREENEFNT

Deferred tax liabilities BEPIEEE
Group F5E
2008
—Be0\%
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related Development Revaluation
depreciation costs of properties Total
B EMRE
ZINERE HERF EffE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BEFT BETT
At 1 April 2007 RZZTLEMA—HA 22,115 2,942 31,386 56,443
Deferred tax credited to FARK@R MR
the income statement HEET IR
during the year (note 10) (Kfzx10) (2,972) (582) 0] (3,561)
Exchange differences ERRE - - 2,421 2,421
Gross deferred tax liabilites R -ZTZ/\F=A
at 31 March 2008 =t—B8
RERIE
BEER 19,143 2,360 33,806 55,309

120 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited X OB %#EBREMR AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group

At 1 April 2007 N_EZT+FWA—H
FRRRZER

B[ =3

RRERIE (AfaE10)

Deferred tax charged
to the income statement
during the year (note 10)

R-EENE=A=+—H
POEAE B A

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2008

R-EENF=A=+—H
PEIE R B (4

Net deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2008

AR SRR P

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

33. BEHIEE)

IEEBRIAESE
b 45
2008
—EETN\E

Losses available
for offset
against future

taxable profits Others Total
o] {85
HiEERH

=Ll 0) GF | Hit @st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T

2,795 1,007 3,802

(2,795) (144) (2,939)

= 863 863

54,446
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Group

At 1 April 2006

Deferred tax charged to
the income statement
during the year (note 10)
Deferred tax debited to equity
during the year:
Surplus on revaluation
Change in tax rate
Exchange differences

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2007

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

33. BEHIES)

BEHIAEE

*5E
2007

—==

Depreciation

allowance in
excess of
related Development Revaluation
depreciation costs of properties Total
BEEENE
ZIMERE EEIEN BfEME et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BETT BETT BETT
RZTE EMNA—H 19,224 1,349 12,420 32,993
FAREERME
FRE A
(Hiz£10) 2,891 1,593 - 4,484
FARERTR
ZIEERR -
B A - - 3,120 3,120
PR - - 15,253 15,253
P X - - 593 593
RZZELE=H
=+ —HMEL
HEBGERRE 22,115 2,942 31,386 56,443

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

RNBEEXERAERAT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008 —ELEN\F=A=+—H
33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. @EHIE("@E)
Deferred tax assets BEFHIEEE
Group FEE
2007
—ETEF
Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profits Others Total
A {45 85
BigfERT
& F R 518 HAh @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2006 R-ZZEZEFNA—H 3,117 364 3,481
Deferred tax (charged)/ FARKEER
credited to the income ($IBR),FEA
statement during the year — FYEIEFLIE
(note 10) (BtaE10) (322) 643 321
Gross deferred tax assets R _ZEE+F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2007 RRIERIE & EE AR 2,795 1,007 3,802
Net deferred tax liabilites MRZ-ZTZ+F=-F=+—H
at 31 March 2007 RRERIE B EF R 52,641
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

33.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$47,031,000 (2007: HK$38,459,000) and in Mainland
China of approximately HK$10,636,000 (2007: HK$5,095,000)
that are available indefinitely and for a five-year period,
respectively, for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses were arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as the directors consider not probable that the subsidiaries
will have sufficient future taxable profits against which those
losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

— ==

33.

RNBEEXEERAER2T

NF=ZH=+—H
WEIEHIE &)

RAEEBRBARFEAMEE 2 HIE
B8 5 Bl 4 & % ¥47,031,0000( = Z
T+ 4 . & ¥38,459,0000T ) R 4 BB
#10,636,0000c( — T T £ F | B
5,095,0007T ) 2 Bl °] PR HA A5 88 R X
hEFTERERNGE  IKEEEEE
ZATIRRERT = A o W EBEZEE
BRAEEHIBEEE  WIBHRESR
RMTERRITNAIBE R DR Z AR RIERTE
2 E B o

RZZETZNF=ZA=+—H LERAX
ETHBRARZARELRNENZ
BEAARERELERBEE(Z

2
3
=

ARBERN TR ZIRELEREHRF
&,



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

34. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
1,200,000,000 (2007: 1,200,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:
1,057,889,962 (2007: 952,889,962)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included

in note 35 to the financial statements.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

34. I&RXK

ERE
1,200,000,000% ( =T Z 4 :
1,200,000,0000% ) & A% E &
B EE0.10 TR T B AR

BEEITRER
1,057,889,962[% (— T T4 :
952,889,962f% ) Z IX EI (A
0,10 0 R L R

Company
F4F

2008 2007
—BENAE| —TTLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETIT BB FIT
120,000 120,000
105,789 95,289

RERRE

5¥35 °

2N B AR A B R 1B B0 B A e R P
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

34. BE @)

A summary of the transactions during the year in the Company’s

issued share capital is as follows:

KRB BITRARFAZR S EZ M0
T~

Number Issued Share
of shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
EEThRE B#T et
(=] B i B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
BEFT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2006, RZEEFENA-A-
31 March 2007 and ZZ5tE=-A=1-H
as at 1 April 2007 RRZZZ+FNA—H 952,889,962 95,289 59,098 154,387
Issue of shares (note) Bkt (Wi) 105,000,000 10,500 12,390 22,890
Share issue expenses (nofe)  RIAETHE (Hit) - = (100) (100)
At 31 March 2008 RZEENF=A=1—H 1,057,889,962 105,789 71,388 177177

Note:

On 13 November 2007 the Company entered into a share

subscription agreement with CorporActive Fund Limited, a

third party company, for the subscription of 105,000,000 new

ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each at the price
of HK$0.218 per shares. 105,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company were issued and cash proceeds of
HK$22,890,000, net of share issue expenses of HK$100,000,

were received by the Company.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

RNBEEXEERAER2T

P e e

HiF: R-ZTTtF+—A+=HB %2
7) B 2 = J5 A \)CorporActive Fund
Limiteds] Z IR D R B H & - AR
BESRBE8TREALARQ A
105,000,0008% & A% ™ {E & #0.10
TR EBRRKRG - NRAAE AT
105,000,0004% & % 1 1E 7% #50.107T &Y
B&fn - AQ BB WERE € FrS R IE S
#£22,890,000 (H1BR AR 15 B 1T 2 B 15
100,0007T °)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include the Company’s executive directors or employees of the
Group. The Option Scheme became effective upon the listing
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 October 1997
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Option Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. No option may be granted to
any employee which, if exercised in full, would result in the
total number of shares already issued and issuable to him/her
under the Option Scheme exceeding 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of shares subject to the Option Scheme at
the time it is proposed to grant the relevant option to such
employee.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
directors and is equal to the higher of: (i) the nominal value of
the shares; and (ii) a price, which is not less than 85% of the
average closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

35.

BB R st 3l

AR w R A R a8 BB BB &t
gl BERZFHAKEXBRRE
FERNEER2EATIRHERE N
B -BREFISERZ2BEALBER

m

REABPTEFTHAKEER - BIRER
ERNARARBEOR—ANEFT BTN

BEZEBMARZIMARRA(BR
P ) ETRAERR - BREBURSIERTIN
ZatE e bt B AR AR RSH0
f'f o

RIREEREST &) B B AT T X A0 R AT
FEREREZRE LR HEREREREE
TTER AR R R EREHE D H TG M
10% ° A ERMEE R HBRE 2
1T 76 B8 R8I A S S8 BUIR IR 8 IR A 5t
FEBRTRABETTZRESENRNDE
B HBEERRHAMBRETZE
BEZHBRESS ML ERNERK
EMR25% - AN ERZEREER L BR
& -

BRETFEFERESETE - HER T
gasE  (WBROEE: Ri)TERAERRQ
AROCEEERLEREREZEBNR
22 5 B 72 B 22 AT A9 F ¥ U 1 (E85%HY
B4 -

BERBYINETREAZERESLAR
BRAGRE 2R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

35.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme at any time from the date of acceptance of
the option by an employee or such later date as may be fixed
by the directors, to any date prior to the 10th anniversary of
such date, provided that the employee can only exercise a
maximum of 20% of the options granted to him/her in each
12-month period following the commencement of the relevant
option period. The consideration to be paid by the employee
upon acceptance of a grant of options is HK$1.00.

With effect from 1 September 2001, the Stock Exchange
requires that the exercise price of options is at least the higher
of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant and the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant. Up to the date of
this report, the Company has not granted any option on or
after 1 September 2001.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Company’s share option scheme during the year:

At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007
and 1 April 2007

Lapsed during the year

At 31 March 2008

R 5 4R R B o

— ==

35.

RZEENF=ZA=+—H

RNBEEXEERAER2T

NF=ZH=+—H
SRR HEST &l ()

EHEEBTEEMNEREZAKESA
BRI EMREAMEEZEHETFE
WE B IEER BRI R B AR AT S A
BRITERRE  EEHEETEAE
AR AE HARI R i 12 & E1218 B BARE A 17
FRLZEHERBREN20% EET
BEREL s ERERAESNOREARS
#1.007T °

B-ZT-—FALA-BE BXMRE
BEESEKTEEA/STIKSE : IR
R B B B S A R U T B K B A
EEERL B RERS B EBRR
BFHEHE BEARSBEH KA
AR-_ZETE-—FNA AR 2RI ER
R T RE AR o

FAR - EARBBIREET HARTTE
MR T

Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
IIEFEHITEE RERESE
HK$ ‘000

per share
FIRE F R
0.467 65,175
0.467 (8,355)
0.467 56,820



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

35. BERR#ESTHEl )

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options REEH MATEEREZITEER
outstanding as at the balance sheet date are as follows: TEBRET -
2008
—EBTNE

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
Bk E TEE 1T{EHA

‘000 HKS$ per share

FiR BREE
56,820 0.467 10/04/2000-09/04/2010
—EEFTFEMA+HE
—E-FTFEMWARA

2007
—ETLF

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
B EHE ITEE" 77152 B

000 HK$ per share

FhH 7R B
65,175 0.467 10/04/2000-09/04/2010
—ETTFMA+RAE
—ET-ZFWMANA
2 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * FEIREC T (B S EZE AR B /TAL
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes A%+ AR E]AR AN A AL B E

in the Company’s share capital. SEEE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008

35.

36.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 56,820,000 share
options outstanding under the Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 56,820,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$5,682,000 and share premium
of HK$20,853,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 56,820,000 share options outstanding under
the Option Scheme, which represented approximately 5.4%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the former holding company of the Group
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation to
rationalise the Group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor.

— ==

35.

36.

RNBEEXEERAER2T

NF=HA=+—H

BB HEST 8l )

REER  AARIREBERESE R
56,820,000/% =] 7% 175 B8 g 7 AR
ARERAEEMNS  2ETFERTE
A% #E 5 8 B AN A B) % 47 %8 9156,820,000
g mRAR D - IR B REEINR AR B
5,682,0007T & f% 17 4= (B & #20,853,000
TL(RETRX) °

RZEMERRMERT - ARAARE
B A% % 5T &1 ££ 4556,820,0004% 14 7 77 i
BRE  EARAIRNZABAZEETR
D #95.4% °

s
(a) ZFEHE

B MBI EFE 2
BRUB|RERZ

%
@ 4
s

AEBNBABREAEERSE
BARB RN ER A EhimE
BEARKERBRETHREEA
1 e B B AN 5 1 A2 A ) AR AN
EE - 8 H AN A B Bk 32 i 3%
TTRPEENER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

36. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company

Notes
iz
At 1 April 2006 ZEERENA-A
Profit for the year REE & H
Proposed final 2007 BR-ZZLF
dividend RERE 12
At 31 March 2007 and S o3
at 1 April 2007 ZA=t-Bk
“E5+FNA-A
Issue of shares BIRH 34
Share issue expenses RipBa%H 34
Loss for the year FEEEE
At 31 March 2008 ZZENF
=A=t+-H

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation referred to
in note 36(a) to the financial statements, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore.

Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company
is available for distribution to shareholders, subject
to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution represent the share premium account,
contributed surplus and retained profits.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

36. fH#E @

(b) AAF
Share
premium Contributed Retained

account surplus profits Total
f b ik (R AR HNES REiRH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BEFT BETT
59,098 58,794 11,743 129,635

- - 40,007 40,007
- - (9,529) (9,529)

59,098 58,794 42,221 160,113
12,390 - - 12,390
(100) - - (100)

- - (7,978) (7,978)

71,388 58,794 34,243 164,425

ARTNHNBSERBNBR
% I} SE36(a) A7 1k B 48 B 0 8 Y
BRARZRHATE  BHARA
AR RBTETROEEDZ
-

REFESEEEQRAA(-ZEZT
FEIAAR) BRARREBER
AAEAUNABRESEIN » AR
)R] % B 40 )4 B BR AR 1B 0 IR T Bk
R EGRERSERRARRREIK
HRERAEBEEEABREKT
FHMNER - EERAR - ARQF
AR H R R S B RR
BARSBRIREB A o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mt gt

31 March 2008 —EENFZHA=1+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. HEMBAT
On 28 November 2007, the Group entered into a disposal R-EE+FE+—A=+/1\H xX&EH
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Tonic Appliances I EHE - M — B % =7 A F)Profit
Limited (“TAL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group to Cycle Investments Limited & E R AN & &
Profit Cycle Investments Limited, a third party company, at —BEEMB AR R AXABERERA
a cash consideration of HK$5.6 million. The transaction was BZ(RENDFXHER|)2Ei#Ezm HE
completed on 21 December 2007. R (B 515,600,000 c XBER_ZE

-+ A=+— B -

HK$’000
BB F T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE
Accounts and bills receivables UK BR 3R N R R 2,424
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - EBek 2,569
other receivables H b W 3R I8
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHET 1,085
Accounts payables FEHBR K 9)
Accrued liabilities and other payables fEEtBERAMERNKIE (1,967)
Interest-bearing bank and PRI EMEE
other borrowings (414)
3,688
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5)  HEME R T2 YR (H1:25) 1,922
5,610
Satisfied by: NRA
Cash Be 5,610
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in MEERBATINIRES LERIRESE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: BRAEBRDTET -
Cash consideration ReRE 5,610
Cash and bank balances disposed of HERE MIRITEH (1,085)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RHEERNBRARZRE X
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary SREESEERRAFEE 4,525

132 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited X OB %#EBREMR AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

Major non-cash transactions

U

(i)

(iii)

During the year, deposits for acquisition of items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$5,457,000
(2007: HK$31,014,000) were utilised as part of the
considerations paid for the purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value
at the inception of the leases of HK$1,246,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group
disposed of certain items of property, plant and
equipment for a consideration of HK$8,842,000. The
amount was recorded as an other receivable at its
amortised cost of HK$8,842,000 at 31 March 2007
and was subsequently settled during the year end 31
March 2008.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans which are secured by the

assets of the Group are included in note 31 to the financial

statements.

—EENF=ZA=+—H

38.

39.

SZEBRLSRERMEE
FEHRERXS
(i) FRN - BEDE  BEAKKHEE

(i)

(iif)

B # 5] & % #5,457,0000( = &
T F ¢ HEH31,014,00000 ) B &
A ERBEYE  BERR
HIEE HEHRIE -

REE-_ZETLHF=A=+—8
LEFE AEERDE - BEK

RGBT RERELHE - REIL
ZEHROR  ZEWE - BEX
FBHE RGBS 1,246,000

ﬁo

RBE-_ZTTLtF=A=1+—
BLEFEE AEBUREEE
8,842,000t L EE TWE - KE
REBHEIER - ZREU =TT £
FZA=+—HZEEXABE
8842000AH§§IJ1’EE¥1@){EH&%
CHEBERRZZETZNF=A=1
_EEEE/EME"

HIREE

HAREEEFEFNANRERITER
HIECHN B RAMES
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31 March 2008

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not

—FENFZA=+—F
40. S REE

@ REER  KRRMBRERPEIR

provided for in the financial statements were as HsKABENT -
follows:
Group Company
F5E FATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E —TT+F ZEENE —TTtE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Guarantees for general =1
banking facilities of M —MRB1T
subsidiaries* EERMER - - 1,388,027 1,466,339
Shipping guarantees MIEER 1,643 10,294 - -
1,643 10,294 1,388,027 1,466,339
* At 31 March 2008, HK$518,320,000 (2007: = RZEENF=ZA=+—

HK$529,896,000) of the general banking facilities
were utilised by the subsidiaries.

In April 2007, Toshiba America Consumer Product
L.L.C. (“Toshiba”) alleged the Group infringing its
DVD technology patents and filed a civil complaint
against nine of the subsidiaries of the Group. With the
related licence agreement signed on 25 July 2007,
the Group has obtained the required licence to use
patented technologies of Toshiba, Mitsubishi, Hitachi,
JVC, Panasonic, Samsung, Sanyo, Warner Brothers
and Sharp, the DVD 6C Patent Licensing Group.
Toshiba subsequently dropped all its claims against
the Group.

TEBAREEAMN—RK
B A&7 #518,320,000

SET LR B

WNZZTZE £ F M A - Toshiba
America Consumer Product
LLC([RZDEBAEERILA
DVDH} £ B A I [m) 7 &= B A & B
BRARREREFRN - BERZ

ETEFtLtA-+THBEIZAE

AETFEFRE  AEEEDE
FRAEREY - =2 - HiZ ~ JVC - £
BCZE -ZHF ERRBEE

B XDVD 6CEFIEE TR B EF|
BB E T - REZBERE
EBHEAREERIOAERE -

RNBEEXEERAER2T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf%53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c)

In September 2006, two former customers of TAL, a
then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to its disposal by the Group (as detailed in note 37),
commenced legal proceedings against TAL, seeking
damages in the sum of HK$3,653,000 together with
interest for breach of agreement for the sale of goods.
The Group disposed of its entire interest in the issued
share capital of TAL in November 2007. Following the
completion of the disposal, the claim against the Group
ceased.

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@)

The Group leases certain of its buildings under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term
of 10 years.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

—EENF=ZA=+—H

40. FAREE @

(©)

ZETEXRFAA RAEEH
ER-—H2EWEBRARIREAR
EEAT(FHEHRMFEST) BA
AERZMENEFHERY
EnHBE2IGER MERORE
BREMERFR BN ABE
3,653, OOOE(LH%U ) B B
B AEEBR-_ZTTLFE+—A
HEERRNRAEREETR
Rz 2w - HETKE @+ @
AEEREHRED SR -

41, BEHERH

(a)

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMSF)

After five years AFE

AEEREEEHEZHEE
TET  HHHBESI10F -

RZZEZENE=ZA=+—H ' &
SEREBEEEBEPFIZZ T A
O &2 E R T 51 H 2 2 e i

ZARFEHRSETEOT

Group

F5H
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
1,076 1,076
4,304 4,304
2,511 3,587
7,891 8,967
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31 March 2008

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS a1,

(continued)

(b) The Group leases certain of its properties under

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to four
years.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, F_EZERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
operating lease arrangements (2007: Nil).

RNBEEXERAERAT

LEHERH@

AEERELKLHELHHEHER

ETHE - MEBRONZITFH

NF—EmE -

R-EEN\GE=A=+—8 &

& B 75 1 Al $B 8 ML TAER
THHEE MR REEES R
A
Group
FEHE
2008 2007
—EEN\E BT F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BB F T
3,786 2,007
7,322 2,924
11,108 4,931
REEH  NRAWEERLE
HERH(ZZZTLF : &) o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

42.

43.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
41(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments

at the balance sheet date:

Contracted, but not provided for: BETLBAREHE ¢
Equipment and tools HERTE

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any

significant commitment (2007: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had the following

related party and connected transactions during the current

and prior years:

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group
signed a term loan facility agreement for a syndicated
loan of HK$150 million for a period of three years.
Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman of
the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, is required to
be the single largest shareholder, be actively involved
in the management and business of the Group, and be
maintained at least 40% of the beneficial interests in
shareholdings in the Company.

AR SRR P

—FENFZA=+—F
42. FKiE

% b OB SE41 (o) B ¥ i A 48 T RO
5h - REEPEH B AN TEARE :

Group

XEH
2008 2007
—BENE —ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BB FIT
590 58

REER  ARAWEEMEREE
ZEBTLFE) o

43. FAEANLTX S RHEERS

BB RREMBY AERF K AEER
Sy AEERAFERBEFESR TSI
BEATRBAERS

(a) HE_ZTZTAAF=A=1+—H1E
FE AEEFITAH=F0E
HEFBEDGE  REERAS
#£150,000,0007T ° R & % =& &
FoARRAEEERLONEEEE
BE-—RARRE  BHRSEAEE
MEBRER  WAERARQRR
R DAI%NBTRRIER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:
Short term employee benefits EHEEREF
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 1R FI

Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEAER
management personnel B EE

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

AP R M

—FFN\F=H=+—H

43. FAEALTX G RAER S
(%)

(b) REAREETEEEAS

2008 2007
—gEA%| —TTi4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT| _ BMTR
13,239 14,394

560 580

13,799 14,974

EEMe - SFBHRYE
HAMIEES ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

—EENF=ZHA=1+—H

44,

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Group
2008

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments
Non-current portion of an other

receivable

Accounts and bills receivables
Factored accounts receivables
Current portion of loans receivable

Financial assets included

in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss
Cash and bank balances

AfhEZRE

A RWHIRLZ
FEREE D

BRERLFE

YRR EERR

BREFRZRBES

TREEBERNHE

e REML
FEMROR
BAFERFARS
ZBAEE
RERBITHET

BROERTZEMIA

REEH SROIBERTZEMIAZ

BREEMT :
FEHE
—BT0E
SREE
Financial assets
at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BATE
dTAER
ZEREE
-FHE ERE T E
BB REWRIE SHEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BB BB BB
- 2,470 - 2,470
- 207,724 - 207,724
- 118,451 - 118,451
- 93 - 93
- 2,946 - 2,946
4,080 - - 4,080
- 31,031 - 31,031

4,080

362,715

366,795
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31 March 2008 —ELEN\F=A=+—H
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. B EBERRZEMTR@)
CATEGORY (continued)
Group FEE
2008 —ETN\E
Financial liabilities SEHAEE
Financial

liabilities at fair

value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortised
trading cost Total
BRATE
stABE
ZEMEE HieH
- FE BAEZ
BE MBaRE ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BETFIT EEFTT
Accounts payables JEE 1 BR 3R - 507,856 507,856
Financial liabilities included in & @ EERE
accrued liabilities and FEEtBEREM
other payables e IR - 6,179 6,179
Interest-bearing bank and SFRRITR
other borrowings Hifg & - 399,869 399,869
Bank advances on factored FEUUR R FRBR X - 118,451 118,451
accounts receivables ZIBITER
Derivative financial instruments T4 4@ T A 3,325 - 3,325

3,325 1,032,355 1,035,680
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44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are

(continued)

Group
2007

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Non-current portion of an other
receivable

Non-current portion of loans
receivable

Current portion of loans receivables

Accounts and bills receivables

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash and bank balances

ARhEzRE
At RUMGIRZIERD D

RUREFZ RS

EHRUMET 2 RE B2
(EE S
TRHEEBREAENTA
REREM

e R
BRVERHARS
PAUS &
TEEMIE
RELBTRE

as follows:

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

44, BRPERRZEMIR@)
NHEER  EROERTZEMIAEZ
BREMEMT : (&)

AEH
—BTtE
SHEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss Loans and financial
-held for Trading receivables assets Total
RATERHA
B& ERR e E
TREE A cREAE it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
EETTT BETT BETT BETT

- - 14,219 14,219

- 4780 - 4,780

- 93 - 93

- 188 = 188

- 199,162 - 199,162

= 38,348 = 38,348

10,512 - - 10,512
1,582 - = 1,582
- 92,698 - 92,698

12,094

335,269

14,219

361,582
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31 March 2008

44,

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

Group
2007

Financial liabilities

Accounts payables FETER R
Financial liabilities included 4 @& &8 E:T

in accured liabilities BERHEAm

and other payables FEFIE
Interest-bearing bank and 5t 2 4R1T N

other borrowings HifgE

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

4. BHBERRZEMIE @)

AEE
—EEtE

EMAR

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
1R
AR Z
MBEaRE
HK$’000
BT T

288,408

2,643

529,896

820,947

RNBEEXERAERAT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

44,

45.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

Company

Except for the Company’s available-for-sale investments which
are categorised as available-for-sale financial assets, all the
financial assets of the Company, including amounts due from
subsidiaries and cash and bank balances are categorised as
loans and receivables.

All the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 March 2008 and
2007, including other payables are categorised as financial
liabilities as at amortised cost.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, finance
leases, and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables and accounts
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage its sources of finance and the currency risks arising
from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

44,

45.

BRyBERRZEMIRE @)

kAL
BARBDBEAAHHESREE 2R
HEHEREN FMEAXARAEREE

(BREERHEBARRRXEE S RRT
BE)DBERERRERGIR

KRAAR_BENFR_ZZLF=H
=St-HZMAzRAR(EBREME
NRB) DB REBEKATE 2SR
afE-

A5 R b 2 B AR R U BR

AEEZETESRIAGTEIAERIN)
BRFAEBRITER BEMERRER
RITER - ZFERTAZEZANR
WAREXGEEES AKEHA
ZREREABEREE A B N EKE
AEEBERENERREREBERBE
K oo

AEETETITETAERS  TERE
HEKAY BEEEEEESHRRE
EAARKEERBZINERR

rEBeMTAMELEZ T ERRBAHM
KEk - SMNERR - FEERERBE
TRE - EFgRIRAZEESEZ
FRBZBER  ZFBRRRV XA -
AEERTETRAZ @5 BRIRYH
KM E2.4
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31 March 2008

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

NF=HA=+—H

45. BHEMBREEBRERB K

(&)
22 2 B

AEBMAENMSNEEHRBEE
BT ASENFEF R B2 RHABE
HHE o

TRINRMERBEAIREE S - ME
il TS OR B AN - B KR B A A
MERFEERZTE) RASEER
ZHURMEDHT ©

2008 —BEN\E
Hong Kong dollar ki
Hong Kong dollar ok
2007 —BTtE
Hong Kong dollar ki
Hong Kong dollar B

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

Group

AEE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity
RERZ BBtz i
o, (E4) O GEL) i GERY)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
100 (4,906) (4,906)
(100) 4,906 4,906
100 (4,975) (4,975)
(100) 4,975 4,975

RNBEEXEERAER2F



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures

arise from a substantial portion of sales or purchases by

operating units in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance
sheet date to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities).

2008

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against RMB

2007

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against RMB

S i
CEEL SN
W33
3B AR
ik

et

ME B AR
V]

WE B AR
pilIE:

The Group constantly reviews the economic situation and

its foreign currency risk profile, and considers implementing

appropriate hedging measures in future as the need arises.

—EENF=ZA=+—H

45.

A1 5 B

(%)

o BE 2 B

AEBEAZINEZ ZRAR °
REUARBAGES

EEEHERBK

ZEER

fLZRBEEE -

TRINTREEAARBKERZSBA]

g MAMBEERRBTE  KX&H

BRERAEN( HREEEERBEAT
B2EE)) 2 BREDHT ©

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

B P& Bt i F

whGRY) o, (i8d)

% HK$°000

B F T

5% (8,658)

5% 8,658

5% (1,508)

5% 1,508

R B B A T AB R O I ELANEE & B2

HE WRARAEFTERZEREHEE

B 2R
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45.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances, available-for-sale financial
assets, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivables are
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., accounts and bills receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and its available banking facilities.

— ==

45.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

NF=HA=+—H

HHEEEEEERBR

(%)

SEEE
AEBEEEDERAMNAERBZE=T7E
TED AEBEZBERRMERIANEE
GRETESZRFPHARREERE
TR o Mo - BUGRIAAR T A ESR
HEEE -

AEEHEtBEREE(ETEBREAER

RITHEF AHEEESRMEE  BA

FEFABRZ ZBEARE RHE i EK

ﬁAIE)HﬂﬁA%LTD?ELZ@F)’TFEE’MEEH
C FRESFNZETANKREE -

EEEAZIK?EEEE%EEE‘”&/EJ Bo¥E=
FHEITES  H—RUTZTEHRMS -
ERAEEASZHEWERRREETE
EHEERRNE - T EE BRI
WERME23WE -

REELEE

AEENAKLEERDESRITAE

RETHRORAR HTAZEEERT
ARk EE(MRKERRER)E

BB - WIBRIEBRIRESR o

AEENBEFERNEBERANEERA
PRASMEAPHANRITEER  RE
BeRHBELRBELNTE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy
and ensures that sufficient cash and credit lines are maintained
to meet the Group’s liquidity requirements.

As at 31 March 2008, the Company’s financial liabilities of
HK$9,000 (2007: HK$9,000), based on contracted undiscounted
payments, was repayable on demand.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

—EENF=ZA=+—H

MHHEERRBEEERERBR
()
nBE & EEE)

AREBEFEERFEMBUBR - LR
HEmERRAe hEEEEUANAAS
BRBESHE -

RZBEZNF=ZA=+—"H ' A2aH

ERIARITE N S @ & &5 19,0007
—TETAF  E9,0007T) B R Bk
=

REEH  AEENDRIORFTENE
BEENZIHMBRIRAT

Group 2008
X5E —BE0E
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
EXE ZEAEYD
88 JOR=@ER W+-fAR -ZEIif gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT  BETT  EBETT  BETn  BETT
Accounts payables MR - 334,444 173,412 - 507,856
Financial liabilities included in £ B&EIE - 6,179 - - 6,179
accrued liabilities and other EstBER
payables HibEAFUR
Interest-bearing bank SRR
and other borrowings REMES 4,299 204,390 95,145 96,396 400,730
Bank advances on factored fE W RITRERRZ
accounts receivables RITER - 118,451 - - 118,451
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A - 3,325 - - 3,325

4,299 666,789 268,557 96,896 _ 1,036,541
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

HHEERBREEREERBE

(%)

nBEREEF

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

2007
—TTLF
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
E Kby ZEAZED
EE PR=FEA R+=EAR —Z8f st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT EEFT  EETT  EETT  BETT
Accounts payables e RS = 205,129 83,279 - 288,408
Financial liabilities included in SHAERE
accrued liabilities and it aEREM
other payables ER I8 - 2,643 - - 2,643
Interest-bearing bank HBER
and other borrowings REMEE - 247,668 126,707 157,734 532,109

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. Except for the compliance of certain bank
covenant for maintaining the Group’s bank facilities, the Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

FEBEAREE2 T ZHARRRERE
BIERRKERSERBEEREERB 28
N LHRBREEALE MR
BLREERSBRRER -

AEERBECEREEY  EEAEN
R WHEEHRE - BT #FHH
BEXNER  AEBEHAERBRRZMS
BRE - MRERERANK TR © Br
BTRERSAEBERITERNE TRT
LI - A5 B 4 78 38 ST A (] S0 3B BE AN
ZEXRBE  ANEBZERZR  BURHB
EREZ2-ZEZN\ER_ZETLE=H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

45.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain

the gearing ratio below 100%. Net debt includes interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings and bank advances on

factored accounts receivables, less cash and bank balances.

Capital includes total equity. The gearing ratios as at the

balance sheet dates were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Add: Bank advances on factored
accounts receivables

Less: Cash and bank balances

Net debt

Capital

Gearing ratio

FRRITREMER

e ERARN IR Z
RITEN

o Re MRITET

(EREDE

BEARLE

MEEGEEHERBKER
(4)
EXREE(85)

AEBEREERBLR(AERFE
BAER)EREAR - REBENBRA
M EERBLLERMI00%AT » BIEF
BEEFERTREMEES REKERN
REBERZRITER BB E RIBTHE
7 BABEEDRERE NEEENE
EBBLERNT :

Group

FRE
2008 2007
—EBAEF| —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
399,869 529,896
118,451 =
(31,031) (92,698)
487,289 437,198
561,750 541,370
86.7% 80.8%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008

46.

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 16 June 2008, the Company entered into a conditional
sale and purchase Agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with
the spouse and daughter of Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, a
director of the Company, (“Purchasers”), for the disposal of a
director quarter (the “Property”), which is currently occupied
by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, for his residential purpose, at
cash consideration of HK$34 million. The consideration was
determined on arm’s length basis based on the value of the
Property as stated in the valuation report prepared by Jones
Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuer, as at 31 May 2008. As at 31
March 2008, the net book value of the Property amounted
to approximately HK$5 million and it is estimated that the
completion of the transaction will result a gain of approximately
HK$29 million to the Group.

Since the Purchasers are close family members of Mr. Ling
and the consideration is greater than HK$10 million, the
proposed disposal transaction constitutes a non-exempted
connected transaction for the Company and the S&P Agreement
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval pursuant
to the requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The above has been disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 June 2008 and circular dated 4 July 2008
and the completion of the S&P Agreement is subject to the
approval of the independent shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting on 29 July 2008.

RA 5 4R R B o

— ==

46.

RNBEEXEERAER2F

NE=ZH=+—H
SHBEEIR

RZZEENFNA+TEB  AQRIEK
REEEEL N A2 RBREXZE(E
75 1) sk AER & X {8 7 34,000,000 ()
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/\E
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78 #5,000,0007T © {5t R 5 T /A
£ [ 75 2R U 75 4074 1529,000,0007T ©

HREHRELEEZAERURRERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#53 3R Mict

31 March 2008

47.

48.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs during
the current year, certain comparative amounts have been
adjusted to conform with the current year’s presentation and
to show separately comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2008.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 July 2008.

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

47.

48.

A s

IR MR I T2 2P FF AR AR B - RIA AR
FERMNHMTREETRETBRELE
A ETHBRBFCEHNAE  UFE
EFE2BEDNBTIR_ZZTNFE
R FEEEREWLREATF -

EYE RS DE 9

HERRER-_ZSZTN\FLATN\BE
EEgHE  WERETE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LFEMBEARE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the LWTAREEBERNEMBEE X656  BE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published LEBEME  HEERIEEAE FIBRKEEZ
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, s WEELHEESEY EHHHE -

is set out below.

Results

REVENUE LN
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B B 7
Tax I8
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AE G m |

Assets and Liabilities

TOTAL ASSETS BERLE

TOTAL LIABILITIES BEERE

152 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

E 3

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=1+—BILEE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZBENE | T LF —_ZTTRF —ZTEZAF ZZTEZWMF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT | BT BT EETT  BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&2751) (&2751)
2,420,918 2,599,414 2,392,219 2,636,294 2,074,140
19,933 31,685 18,509 29,538 20,871
(14,248) (7,673) 101 (1,684) 5,575
5,685 24,012 18,610 27,854 26,446
> ==
SEREE
At 31 March
W=A=+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZBENE | T F —ZZTTRF —ZTERF —ZZTZWF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFIT| EEKFr BETT  BETFTrT  BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
1,717,475 1,483,583 1,520,653 1,337,608 1,452,896
(1,155,725) (942,213)  (1,012,587) (840,887)  (1,063,997)
561,750 541,370 508,066 496,721 388,899
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

31 March 2008

Particulars of properties held by the Group as at 31 March 2008 are
as follows:

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP
IN HONG KONG

1. Units D, G and H on 4th Floor,
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

JLEE

AT Y
RME305 &
AIRE21 5235
WERNE

412D ~ G HEE(L

2. Unit B on 10th Floor,
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

#E
AR
R H305% &
RIRBE21E235%
WERE
10#EBE N1

FREFREZUE

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

AEBR _ZENF=A=t—BHEZVE
ERCECINE

AEEEEERBAZYEES
Type Lease term
Industrial Medium
T% A AR
Industrial Medium
T A B
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

31 March 2008

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

IN HONG KONG (continued)

&), Units A, B, L and 0 on 11th Floor,
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

AR

FARY)

RAH305% &
KIRE21 52 235%
SN

11#2A - B~ LK OEEfs

4, Town House No.113,
Sunderland Estate,
1 Hereford Road,
Kowloon Tong,
Kowloon

NEE

BEYE
BREIR
HEE
FBUBRFRE

58 Lorry Car Parking
Spaces Nos. 7, 8, 9 and 10 on 1st Floor
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

al-

AT HY

RHRHE305% &
RIBE21E 235
HEXNE

19857 - 8- 9%105%
EEHBEN

154 Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

FREFRAZUE

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

XEBETFERBAZUEXEES
(4)

Type Lease term

bt k)

Industrial Medium

T B

Residential Medium

Ex=2 B

Car park Medium

==K1v2 B
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

31 March 2008

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP
IN HONG KONG (continued)

6. Private Car Parking
Spaces Nos. 10, 14, 21 and 22 on Basement
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

B
AR
RWH305% &
RIRE21 E 2355
FEXNE
B0 - 14 - 211225
FLRBAE N

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP
IN THE PRC

7. An industrial complex in
Shitanpu Administrative Zone
Tangxia Town,

Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

BERA

Rz

¥EE A
REHEERZ
A TER

FREFREZUE

—EENF=ZHA=+—H

AEBETERBZYUEXEES
(4)
Type Lease term
#E k)
Car park Medium
E=Kiv B
AEEEPRHGEAEZYEES
Type Lease term
e D)
Industrial Medium
T B
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

31 March 2008

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

IN THE PRC (continued)

8. An industrial complex in

Zhenhua Industrial District
Qishi Town,

Dongguan,

Guangdong Province

ERE
R=m
A
RETXE
RAETL¥EE

9. Unit A805

Tiananchuangxin Technology Square
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province

hE

AYIT

R B
BIFTR RIS
AEEBO5%E

10. An industrial complex in
Huangjiabo Village
ShiPai Town, Shi Pai
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

ERE
R
ABEA A
BEREN
MI¥R

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

—FFN\F=H=+—FH

FREFRAZUE

XEEEDPEBAEZYUEES
(%)

Type Lease term

e 49

Industrial Medium

T A B

Industrial Medium

T A B

Industrial Medium

T B

RNBEEXERAERAT
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